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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LTD.

VISION & MISSION

To provide sufficient handling & storage facilities for perishables in India, with a view to
reduce/control wastages of perishable food products in India.

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

* Eliminating wastage of perishable food products by making available state of the art
Cold supply Chain Infrastructure at reasonable cost in the country, thereby saving
precious food products & foreign exchange for the country.

* To be a customer focused, performance driven, result oriented organization, focused
on providing value for money to its customers.

* To maximize productive utilization of resources, deliver high quality services and to
be recognized for setting the standards for excellence.

* To look constantly for new and better ways to provide innovative services. It will aim

for customer convenience and satisfaction, learn from its competitors and constantly
strive for excellence.

* To set measurable performance goals to support the objectives and mission of the
organization and work as a professional, competent and dedicated team for the
organization to achieve excellence in all areas of business and operations.

* To follow highest standards of business ethics and add social value for the community
at large by discharging social obligations as a responsible corporate entity.

* To maintain absolute integrity, honesty, transparency and fair-play in all its official
dealings and strive to maintain high standards of ethics.
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Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

10 YEAR FINANCIAL/PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE (YEAR WISE DATA)
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE As per IND AS| As per IND AS AsperIND AS| As per IND AS
S5.NO |PARTICULARS 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
1|Total Income {Including other income) 2,555.84 6,464.95 4,028.68 3,922.97 8,555.89 3,286.47 2343.49 71.07 18.01 172.01
2|Expenditure (Inc. Increase/decrease in stock) 2,713.99 553218 | 4,081.91 3,817.57 | 11,310.07 3,534.47 4089.22 649.61 281.50 329.28
3|Operating Margin (1-2) (158.15) 932.77 {53.23) 105.40 (2,754.18) (248.00) (1,745.73) [578.54) (263.49) (157.27)
4|interest Expenses 381.77 507.68 B26.43 692.27 782.71 663.35 307.96 264.97 295.93 | 24678
5|Depreciation 366.51 364.08 361.60 360.69 379.19 535.96 536.74 522.13 503.08 434.79
6|Profit before Tax (906.43) 61.01 | (1,241.26) (947.56) (3,916.08)] ( 1,447.31) (2,5590.43) (1,365.64) {1,062.50} (838.84)
7|Profit after Tax (906.43) 4216 | (1,222.41) (947.56)|  (3,916.08) (1,447.31) (2,590.43) {1,365.64) {1,062.50) (838.84)
8|Other Comprehensive income NA NA NA NA NA NA 1.59 {7.99) 18.41 (0.14)
9|Total Comprehensive income for the year (7+8) NA NA NA NA NA NA (2,588.84) (1,373.63) (1,044.09) (838.98)
10{Dividend - - - - - » - n - -
11|Profit & Loss Account Balance (3,944.06)| (3,901.90)] (5,124.31)] (6,071.87) {9,987.95)| (11,435.95) (14,000.78) (15374.41)]  (16,418.50)]  (17,257.48)
12|General Reserve/Security Premium 10.62 10.62 10.62 19.03 19.06 95.23 41.33 41.33 41,33 41,33
13|Term Loan 4,212.06 3,588,05 2,964.04 - - - - - - -
14 Working Capital Loan 3,364.33 2,814.33 4,314.33 8,160.43 7,932.67 4,289.77 3145.00 3590.00 3,695.00 3753.00
15|Reserve & Surplus (11+12) (3.933.44)| (3,891.28)] (5,113.69)] (6,052.84) (9,968.89)| (11,340.72) {13,959.45) (15333.08)]  (16,377.17)]  (17,216.15)
16 [Fixed Assets (Gross Block) 8,143.16 8,169.23 8,177.23 8,180.73 8,134.51 8,168.39 8061.34 7990.46 7,756.69 6793.03
17|Sundry Debtors 208.50 1,237.16 1,068.96 274,76 551.97 423.71 202.51 166.49 163.40 160.01
18|Share Capital 4,827.38 4,827.38 4,827.38 7,632.96 7,642.93 14,566.77 14566.77 14566.77 14,566.77 15911.77
19|Capital Employed** 8,492.24 8,539.44 2,049.83 1,538.18 (2,355.95) 3,206.05 607.32 (766.31) (1,810.40) (1,304.38)
20|Government Investment - - - - - - - - - -
21|Net Worth (15+18) £93.94 936.10 {290.21)] 1,538.17 (2,355.96) 3,206.05 607.32 (766.31) (1,810.40) {1,304.38)
22|Profit before Tax to Capital Employed (6+19) (0.11) 0.01 (0.61) (0.62) 1.66 (0.45) (4.27) 1.78 0.59 0.64
23|Operating Margin to Capital Employed (3+19) (0.02) 0.11 (0.03) 0.07 1.17 (0.08) (2.87) 0.75 0.15 0.12
24|Profit after Tax to Share Capital (7+18) (0.19) 0.01 (0.25) (0,12) (0.51) (0.10) (0.18) (0.09] (0.07) (0.05)
25|Expenditure to Income (2+1) 1.06 0.86 1.01 0.97 1.32 1.08 1.74 9.14 15.63 1.91
26]Number of Employees 30.00 33.00 35.00 36.00 37.00 32.00 27 25 4 4
27{Income per Employee (1+26) 85.19 195.91 115.11 108.97 231.24 102.70 86.80 2.84 4.50 43.00
28|Current Ratio B.37 6.32 0.47 0.50 0.11 0.65 0.12 0.07 0.06 0.30
29| Debt/Equity Ratio (13+14):21 8.48 6.84 (25.08) 5.31 {3.37) 1.34 5.18 (4.68) (2.04) (2.88)
30[PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE (HANDLING OF FRUITS IN MTs)
Fruits Handling (in MTs) A !
Opening Stock 2,817.275 | 1,374.109 914.869 | 2,878.406 4,573.675 - 3824.735 - - -
Procured 2,855.850 | 9,361.373 7,113.336 | 6,827.576 11,239.281 B,544.296 - - - -
Sold 4,205.745 | 9,538.540 5,009.231 | 4,639.104 15,062.312 4,549.672 13544563 - - -
Closing Stock 1,374.109 914.869 | 2,878.406 4,573.675 - 3,824.735 - - - -

Note 1.Quantities are in MTs

2.Quantities mentioned for 2009-10 has been converted in 20Kg. Per box to derive quantity in Kg.

3.Shortage of 93.271 Mt and 282,073 Mt in 2009-10 and 2010-11, respectively,
4.5hortage of 140.568 Mt and 493.203 Mt in 2011-12 and 2012-13, respectively,
5.5hortage of 750.644 Mt and 169.889 Mt in 2013-14 and 2014-15, respectively,

is due to moisture loss, spoilage & Testing of fruits.

is due to moisture loss, spoilage & Testing of fruits.

is due to moisture loss, spoilage & Testing of fruits.

6.Shortage of 280.172 Mt in 2015-16 Is due to moisture loss, spoilage & Testing of fruits.

7. ** Capital Employed and Net worth calculated after deduct
8. Debt/Equity Ratio calculated on Term Loan and Working Ca

ion of Preliminery Expenses not written off u
pital Loan excluding interest accrued & due.

pto 2014-15 and thereafter modified as per IND AS..

9. Profit & Loss account balance for the FY 2014-15 has been adjusted due to change in rate of Depreciation.
10. While calculating the Current ratio, non-current & current liabilities/assets has been taken into consideration.
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 14™ Annual General Meeting
of the Shareholders of the Company will be held as under -:

Day . Tuesday

Date : 27" August, 2019

Time : 11 A. M.

Venue : Conference Hall,
CONCOR Bhawan,

C-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi-110076.

to transact, with or without modifications, as may be
permissible, the following business :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS -:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions -:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements for
the year ended on 31.03.2019 and the report of Board of
Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Chairman in place of Shri V. Kalyana Rama
(DIN : 07201556) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

3. To take note of the appointment of M/s. Anil Ashok &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as Statutory
Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration and to pass

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :




"RESOLVED THAT the appointment of M/s. Anil Ashok &
Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2018-19, in terms of order no.
CA. V/COY/ CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, F&HEL (1)/479
dated 03/08/2018 of C & AG of India, be and is hereby noted.
Further, they may be paid such remuneration as may be fixed by
Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.”

By order of Board of
Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Sd/-

(Suman Lata)
Company Secretary
Date : 31% July, 2019
Place : New Delhi




NOTES :

" (a) Details of director seeking re-appointment/appointment at

the meeting, is annexed hereto and forms part of Notice.

(b) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is

(c)

d

(e)

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of
himself /herself and proxy need not be a Member.

The instrument appointing proxy should however be
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty eight hours before the commencement of the
meeting. )

Pursuant to Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013, Auditors
of a Government Company are to be appointed/re-
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C &
AG) of India, and in terms of provisions contained in
Companies Act, 2013, their remuneration shall be fixed by
Company in General Meeting or in such manner as the
Company in General Meeting may determine. In pursuance
of the same, C&AG of India has appointed M/s. Anil
Ashok & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditor of the Company for the F/Y 2018-19. Accordingly,
Members are requested to authorize Board of Directors of
the Company to fix the remuneration for the Statutory
Auditors of the Company.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice
are open for inspection at the Registered office of the
Company during office hours on all working days upto and
inclusive of the date of Annual General Meeting.




DETAILS OF DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING RE-APPOIN

TMENT/APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING

ANNUAL GENERAL . MEETING
Name Date of Birth | Date of | Qualification Expertise in specific | List of | Details of
appointment | s functional areas Other Other
‘ Companies | Committee
o in  which | Membershi
Directorsh | p
ip Held
Shri V. Kalyana | 28.09.1963 01.10.2016 B. Tech | Ex-Railway Officer | Three® OneM
Rama (Mech.), having wide experience in
ICWA the field of Engineering,
System Design, Railway
& multi-modal logistics
operation and  Project
Planning and
Commissioning,
A

AN

1. Container Corporation of India

Ltd. 3. CONCOR Air Ltd.

Ltd. 2.SIDCUL‘CONCOR Infra Company

Chairman of CSR Apex Committee in Container Corporation of India Limited.

Location Map
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. FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (FHEL)
(A wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR)

Directors’ Report

To the shareholders

Your Directors are pleased to present their report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ending
31% March, 2019.

RE-ENGINEERING OF RAI, FACILITY, OPERATION & MARKETING REVIEW

With the changed business dynamics on account of implementation of Goods and
Service Tax (GST), and Customized Storage requirements, a new business plan
was finalized in March, 18 for Re-engineering of the facility at Rai, Sonepat in
two phases for development as an Agri-Logistics Centre.

For purpose of modification of existing facility under Phase-I of Re-engineering
plan, CONCOR infused ¥ 13.45 Crores by way of fresh Equity subscription of
FHEL in April, 2018. Partial commissioning of the plant was made in July, 2018
and 24 chambers made available for storage of fruits, eggs and kirana etc.
Further, Mezzanine Floors have been erected in 24 Chambers under Phase-I of
the Plan and modification work on another 26 CA Chambers, is likely to be
completed before coming apple season.

One of the major development that took place in March, 2019 is that one-third of
the existing Rai facility was notified as a custom bonded warehouse. With such
conversion into Custom bonded warehouse, importers/exporters are likely to be
benefitted with reduced overall logistics costs. Operations have also started in
the Custom bonded warehouse with the storage of walnuts and apples.

On account of recent notification for custom bonded warehouse and this
additional revenue stream, which was not envisaged at the time of making Re-
engineering Plan in March, 18 and experience of operation of last one year, the
earlier Re-engineering Plan was reviewed in April, 2019 and a Revised Plan for
development of additional infrastructure under Phase-II, has been approved with
funding of X 30.86 Cr. by way of fresh Equity Subscription by CONCOR.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review with re-starting of the operations, Operating
turnover of your Company increased from % 0.01 Cr. in F/Y 2017-18 to ¥ 0.62 Cr.
in F/Y 2018-19. Other income of Company augmented from % 0.17 Cr. in FY
2017-18 to X 1.10 Cr. mainly due to interest income of % 0.89 Cr. during FY
2018-19,

Cost of Sales increased from % 0.78 Cr. in F/Y 2017-18 to % 1.30 Cr. in F/Y 2018-
19. Further, Employee Benefits Expenses, Finance costs and other expenses for
F/Y 2018-19 are X 0.21 Cr.,, ¥ 2.47 Cr. and % 1.78 Cr., respectively. After
providing for depreciation & amortization expenses amounting to X 4.35 Cr., the
Company suffered Net Loss of ¥ 8.39 Cr. during F/Y 2018-19 as against Net Loss
of X 10.62 Cr. during previous year (2017-18). As on 31.03.2019, accumulated
losses of the company stood at ¥ 172.57 Cr.

FHEL reduced its Net loss by 21% appx. i.e. from % 1062.50 Lakhs in FY 2017-18
to X 838.84 Lakhs in FY 2018-19, as a result of re-starting of operation.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at ¥ 200 Cr. as on
31.03.2019. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company
increased from X 145.67 Cr. to 159.12 Cr. during FY 2018-19, after fresh Equity infusion
of ¥ 13.45 Cr. during 2018-19.

CONCOR continues to hold 100% of the Paid up Equity Share Capital of FHEL, during
the financial year 2018-19.

DEMATERIALISION OF SECURITIES

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 22.01.2019 exempted unlisted
public company which is a Government Company or a wholly owned subsidiary, from the
provisions of compulsory dematerialisation of securities.

FHEL, being an unlisted Government Company and also a wholly owned subsidiary of

CONCOR, is not required to get its shares dematerialised and admitted into Depository
system.

SECURED LOAN

Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2018-19.
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UNSECURED LOAN

As on 31.03.2019, total outstanding loan (unsecured) due to holding Company
(CONCOR) stood at % 37.53 Cr. (inclusive of ¥ 30 Cr. for F/Y 2014-15, ¥ 1.90 Cr.
for F/Y 2015-16, % 4.50 Cr. for F/Y 2016-17 and % 0.55 Cr. for F/Y 2017-18 and ¥
0.58 Cr. taken during FY 2018-19) at the interest rate of 6.58% p.a. Apart from
this, Company has interest accrued & due on borrowings of ¥ 17.91 Cr. on
31.03.2019.

In order to improve the financial/cash flow position of FHEL, CONCOR’s Board in
April, 2019 approved on request the conversion into Equity Share Capital of
FHEL, the outstanding loan of ¥ 37.53 Cr. along-with interest accrued and due of
X17.91 Cr. (Net of TDS) as on 31.03.2019 towards CONCOR plus further interest
accruals (Net of TDS) on the said loan till conversion of said Idan into Equity,
after increase of Authorized Share Capital from ¥ 200 Cr. to ¥ 250 Cr. and
Valuation of shares of FHEL by Registered Valuer.

Shri Yashlok Dubey, Registered Valuer vide Valuation Report dated 13.06.2019,
reported the fair value of each share of FHEL as on 31% March, 2019 as % 6.14/-
and mentioned that the issue price in terms of Provisions of Companies Act, 2013

cannot be less than face value of ¥ 10/-, hence share may be issued at ¥ 10/-
per share.

On 14% June, 2019, FHEL issued and allotted 5,58,94,327 Equity Shares of ¥
10/- each to CONCOR on Rights basis towards conversion of outstanding loan of
X 37,53,00,000 along-with interest accrued and due of ¥ 17,90,76,432 (Net of
TDS) as on 31.03.2019 to CONCOR plus further interest accruals (Net of TDS)
on the said loan till conversion of said loan into Equity i.e. 14.06.2019 of ¥
45,66,836/- aggregating to X 55,89,43,268/- (rounded off to ¥ 55,89,43,270/-),
after increase of Authorized Share Capital of FHEL from ¥ 200 Cr. to ¥ 250 Cr.
with due approvals.

With such conversion of outstanding loan & interest into Equity Share Capital,
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital of Company increased from
159.12 Cr. to ¥ 215.01 Cr. on 14.06.2019.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposit from public as defined in Section 73 and 76
of the Companies Act, 2013, during the F/Y ended on 31.03.2019.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186

FHEL has not given any loans or guarantee or made any investment covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

As per notification dated 5™ June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, first and
second proviso to sub-section (1) of Section 188 under Chapter XII of Companies Act,
2013, are not applicable to a Government Company in respect of contracts or
arrangements entered into with any other Government Company.

During the period ended 31* March, 2019, FHEL's related party transactions were with
its holding company CONCOR (A PSU under Ministry of Railways), in ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length basis. The same are reviewed and approved by the Board
after considering the recommendation (s) of Audit Committee regularly in its meetings.

However, the details of contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related parties

as required under Section 134(3)(h) of Companies Act, 2013, are attached in the
prescribed form.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As per notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government companies have been exempted to comply with the provisions of Section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XIII. FHEL being a
Government company is not required to include aforesaid information as a part of the
Directors” Report. However during the period under review, the Company had no
employees of the category falling under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel).

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer’s strategic objective. As on 31.03.2019, there
were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two way
communication, participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and
motivation of the employees.

RESERVATION POLICY

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU),
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government
from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicapped and
Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2019, there were 03-General and 01- SC
employee working in FHEL.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) prohibits any kind of act of Sexual Harassment
at work place and included the acts amounting to Sexual Harassment at Workplace in its
Conduct Rules and Certified Standing orders (as certified in 1998) and Discipline &
Appeal Rules so as to prohibit any such Act.

FHEL has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in the year 2014 to receive and
investigate complaints related to "Sexual harassment at workplace" following the
guidelines issued by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in "Visakha Vs. State of Rajasthan”.
The committee consists of
four members including one external member who is practicing advocate in Hon'ble High
Court of Punjab & Haryana, Chandigarh. Company Secretary is the Presiding Officer of
the committee.

During the FY 2018-19, no complaint has been received by the Committee.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R & D)
No new R & D activities were carried out during the period under review.

CORPORATE _ SOCIAL _RESPONSIBILITY CSR AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

Being a loss making entity, FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure towards CSR
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under.

PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The particulars in respect of Conservation of energy and technology absorption are
detailed in the Annexure.

There is no Foreign Exchange earning or outgo during the Financial year 2018-19.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

FHEL had identified the possible risks & mitigation plans arising in the Key areas of the
Company. Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures, is reviewed by the
Audit Committee and Board periodically.

AUDITORS

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed
M/s. Anil Ashok & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Delhi as Company’s Statutory
Auditors for the F/Y 2018-19. Statutory Auditor is paid remuneration of ¥ 1,08,000/- plus
Goods & Service Tax, as fixed by Board of Directors'.
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The Statutory Auditors of your Company have given report on the accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2018-19, drawing attention under ‘Emphasis of Matter’ in

respect of sundry debtors. Management’s reply to the point raised by Statutory Auditor,
is as under -: '

Statutory Auditor’s Remark Management’s Reply

Statutory Auditor’s Report -
7 Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following
matter in the Notes to the financial
statements

Note 8 to the financial statement in | It is stated that 6 cases are subjudice
respect of sundry debtors there is | in legal proceedings.

uncertainty related to the outcome of
the lawsuit filed against various sundry
debtors.

Our opinion is not modified is respect
of these matters.

The Comments of C&AG for the financial year 2018-19 are being provided by
Government Auditors and attached to the Report. Further, FHEL is not required to
maintain Cost Records as specified u/s 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In accordance with the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under,
Company has appointed M/s. Amit Agrawal & Associates, Company Secretaries as
Secretarial Auditor, who have conducted Secretarial Audit for F/Y 2018-19. The Report
of Secretarial Auditor & Corporate Governance compliance certificate without any
adverse observation/remark are annexed herewith.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board met 4 (Four) times for transacting business of the Company during the
financial year 2018-19.

During FY 2018-19, Shri Rahul Mithal, Director (P & S)/CONCOR was appointed as
Director of FHEL w. e. f. 09.04.2018, whose appointment has already been approved by
Shareholders in their last Annual General Meeting.

Further, Shri P. K. Agrawal, Director resigned from Directorship of FHEL on 09.04.2018.
Shri Sanjeev S. Shah ceased to be the Independent Director/FHEL w. e. f. 01.04.2019
on account of expiry of his tenure of Directorship, which was co-terminus with his term
in CONCOR (holding company).

Board placed on record appreciation for valuable services rendered by past Board
members during their term of Directorship in FHEL.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notifications dated 5 July, 2017 & 13™ July,
2017 exempted unlisted wholly owned subsidiaries from the requirement of appointing
Independent Directors on their Board and constitution of ‘Audit Committee’ and
‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’.

Recently, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No.
18(7)/2013-GM dated 16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of
non-official Director(s) on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the
concerned Administrative Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a
wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of
Railways so desires.

The following Directors are on the Board till the date of the Report -:

1 Shri V. Kalyana Rama, CMD/CONCOR & Chairman/FHEL;

2 Shri Sanjay Swarup, Director (IM & O)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL;
3. Shri Rahul Mithal, Director (P & S)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL;

4 Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani, GGM(HR)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL;

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri V. Kalyana Rama,

Chairman/Director is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

In terms of MCA notification dated 5" July, 2017 inserting Rule 4(2) to Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules. 2014, unlisted wholly owned subsidiary

company, is exempt from the requirement of appointing Independent Directors on the
Board.

Accordingly FHEL, a wholly owned unlisted subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt under the
Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made there-under from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS’ AND THE BOARD

As required by provisions of Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of
directors including that of Independent Directors’ and the Board is to be carried out
either by the Board or by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by the

Independent Directors. It also requires disclosure of formulated criteria for performance
evaluation in this Report.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, through its notification dated 5% June, 2015 has exempted
Government Companies from these provisions.

However, it may be noted that Appointment of Directors of your Company is done by
holding company CONCOR, a PSU under Ministry of Railways. Minutes of Board level
committees are placed before FHEL's Board. Minutes of Board meetings of FHEL are sent
to CONCOR for placing them before CONCOR'’s Board. Evaluation of Board Members is
done by CONCOR as per procedures laid down.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, Board
confirmed that -: '

@M in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March,
2019, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year under
review;

(i)  the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;
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(iv)  the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31% March,
2019 on a ‘going concern’ basis;

W) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(vi)  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted CONCOR’s Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior
Management of the Company. Link of the Code of Conduct is available on website of the
Company i.e. www.fhel.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is
hereby declared that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have
affired compliance of Code of Conduct for the financial year ended on March 31%, 2019.

CORPORATE _GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
REPORT

Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis, is enclosed and
forms part of Directors’ Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of Annual Return for the financial year ended on 31.03.2019, is attached in the
prescribed form,

CONCLUSION

Your Company acknowledges the support and understanding extended by Container
Corporation of India Limited, Bankers and Auditors of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi » (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 31.07.2019 CHAIRMAN
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Annexure to the Directors’ Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Container
Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) to carry on Cold chain business.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

FHEL’s mission is to provide sufficient handling and storage facilities for perishables in-
India. The Company strives to provide value for money to its customers and fulfill
aspiration of its stakeholders by providing qualitative and efficient services and to conduct
its business according to best principles of good Corporate Governance as indicated by the
disclosures given in the Annexure.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CMD/CONCOR is the ex-officio Part-time Chairman on the Board of FHEL and all other members of Board are
nominated / appointed by CONCOR.

As on 31.03.2019, Board of Directors’ of the Company comprises of Five Part-time Directors including a
Chairman (Ex-officio), one Women Director and one Independent Director.

The Board met four times for transacting business during the financial year 2018-19 on the following dates :-

Board Meeting No. - Board Meeting Dates
70 20™ April, 2018
71 21 July, 2018
72 29" Oct., 2018
73 16™ Feb., 2019

The Company has adopted CONCOR’s Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management of the
Company. The link of same is available on website of company i.e. www.fhel.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is hereby declared

that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance of Code of Conduct
for the financial year ended March 31%> 2019. »

Page 1 of 7




The Composition of Directors, attendance at the Board Meetings during the year 2018-19 and the last Annual General Meeting, the number of other directorships, chairmanship and committee memberships (as provided)
are given below -:

Gt

SL No. Category of Directorship Name of Director No. of Atten- No. of Other Committee No. of Other
Board Dance Membership / Chairman- Directorship / Chairmanship
Migs Aclast Ship
Attended AGM
a Part-time Ex-Officio/Non-
Executive Chairman
1. Chairman & Managing | Sh. V. Kalyana Rama Four Yes One One Three Two
Director/CONCOR (DIN : 07201556)
an Part-time /Non-Executive
Directors
2. Dir. (IM & Ops)/ CONCOR Sh. Sanjay Swarup Four Yes Four Nil Three Nil
(DIN : 05159435)
3. Director (Projects & | Shri Rahul Mithal* Four Yes Nil Nil One Nil
Services)/CONCOR (DIN : 07610499
4. GGM (HR)/CONCOR Ms. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani Four Yes Nil Nit Nil Nil

(DIN No : 0008058303)

amnm Part-time Non-Executive
Directors (Independent)

3. Director Shri Sanjeev S. Shah Four Yes Four Two Four Nil
(DIN : 00323163)#

* Appointed as a Director w. . f. 09.04.2018 in place of Shei P. K. Agrawal, Director (Dom. & HR)/CONCOR, who ceased to be Board member of FHEL w. e. f. 09.04.2018.

# Ceased to be Director w. e. f. 01.04.2019
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, following officials are the Key
Managerial Personnel -:

Shri Mohan Lal Arora, Chief Executive Officer;
Shri Umesh Behl, Chief Finance Officer;
Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MCA vide its notifications dated 5™ July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017 exempted wholly owned
subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing Independent directors on the Board and
constituting ‘Audit Committee’, respectively. Thus, in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as amended from time to time, FHEL being a
wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from complying with the provisions of Section 177
of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of Audit Committee with requisite composition
of Independent Directors and other matters prescribed there-under.

Further, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its officc memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM
dated 16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of Railways so desires.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, Audit Committee had
been constituted comprised of the following members -;

Sh. Sanjeev S. Shah, - Chairman (Ceased to be member w. e. f. 01.04.19)
Sh. P.K. Agrawal - Member (Ceased to be member w. e. f. 09.04.18)
Sh. Sanjay Swarup - Member

Sh. Rahul Mithal _ - Member (w. e. f. 09.04.18)

Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani - Member (w. e. f. 24.04.19)

Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial Year 2018-19 on 20.04.2018, 21.07.2018,
29.10.2018 and 16.02.2019.

The details of the attendance of the members in the Committee meetings held during F/Y 2018-
19 are as under -:

S. No. Name of Members No. of Committee
Meetings Attended

1. Sh. Sanjeev S. Shah Four

2. Sh. Sanjay Swarup Four

3 Sh. Rahul Mithal Three

The Committee reviews the Company’s Annual / quarterly financial Results before submission to
the Board. The Committee attempts to ensure that decision making in the company is objective
and that there are adequate internal controls to ensure efficient realization of revenue, and due
propriety of expenditure,
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notifications dated 5% July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017
exempted wholly owned subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing Independent
directors on the Board and constituting ‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’, respectively.
Thus, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as
amended from time to time, FHEL being a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from
complying with the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of
Nomination & Remuneration Committee with requisite composition of Independent Directors and
other matters prescribed there-under.

Further, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM
dated 16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of Railways so desires.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, FHEL has constituted
Remuneration Committee, comprised of the following members -:

(i) Sh. Sanjeev S. Shah - Chairman (Ceased to be member w. e. f. 01.04.19)
(ii) Sh. P. K. Agrawal ' - Member (Ceased to be member w. e. f. 09.04.18)
(iii) Sh. Sanjay Swarup - Member

(iv) Sh. Rahul Mithal - Member (w. e. f. 09.04.18)

(v) Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani - Member (w. e. f. 24.04.19)

During the Financial Year 2018-19, No meeting of ‘Remuneration Committee’ was held.

No remuneration is paid to functional Directors of holding Company nominated/appointed by
CONCOR in FHEL. They draw their remuneration from CONCOR as per IDA Pay Scales and terms
& conditions determined by Govt.

Part-time Independent Directors are paid Sitting fee of ¥ 40,000/- for attending each Board and
Audit Committee meeting and ¥ 30,000/- per meeting for attending any other Committee
meeting, apart from reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other
meetings.

Shri Sanjeev S. Shah, Part-time non-executive (Independent) Director was paid sitting fee of ¥
3.20 Lakhs (excluding service tax/GST) for attending meetings of Board of Directors and Audit
Committee during FY 2018-19.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

FHEL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of CONCOR and its turnover or net worth is less
than 20% of turnover or net worth, respectively of CONCOR (Holding Company). The Company
is following Corporate Governance Guidelines and had One Independent Director of BOD of
CONCOR in its Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during FY 2018-19.
Independent Director was also designated as the Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. The Company also follows the practice of putting up of Minutes of
Board Meetings of FHEL to the BOD of Holding Company, viz. CONCOR.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Details of location, time and date of last three AGMs are as under -:

AGM Date Location Time
20.09.18 Conference Hall, 11:00 Hrs.
' Container Corporation of India Ltd.,
C-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi - 110076

20.09.17 Do 11:00 Hrs.

27.07.16 Do 17:00 Hrs.

An Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held on 26.03.2018 and a Special Resolution was
passed for Alteration of Capital Clause by Increase of Authorized Share Capital of Company from
T 150 Cr. to ¥ 200 Cr. Also, the Shareholders approved the proposal for issue of fresh 1,34,50,000
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each, by FHEL to Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) on
Rights basis, for the purpose of implementation of Phase I of Re-engineering Business Plan for
carrying out the modifications in the existing CA facility at Rai, Sonepat, so as to cater to the

specific requirements of the clients based on the detailed market analysis and projected business
volumes. ‘

Capital clause of the company has been further altered from T 200 Crore to ¥ 250 Cr. by passing
Special Resolution in the EGM held on 14.06.2019. Shareholders also approved by passing
Special Resolution, issue and allotment of 5,58,94,327 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each to CONCOR
(through CMD/CONCOR) on Rights basis towards conversion into Equity Share Capital of the
outstanding loan of ¥ 37,53,00,000/- along-with interest accrued & due of ¥ 17,90,76,432 (Net of
TDS) as on 31.03.2019 to CONCOR plus further interest accruals (Net of TDS) on the said loan
till conversion of said loan into Equity i.e. 14.06.2019 of % 45,66,836/- aggregating to ¥
55,89,43,268/- (rounded off to Z 55,89,43,270/-).

AGM of Current Year

Date : 27™ August, 2019

Time : 11 AM.

Venue : Conference Hall,
CONCOR Bhawan,

C-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi - 110076.
DISCLOSURES
) During the year, there was no transaction of material nature with the directors or their
relatives that had potential conflict with the interest of the company.

(i)  There were no instances of penalties/strictures imposed on the Company by any statutory

authority due to non-compliance on any matter related to any guidelines issued by
Government during the last three years.

(i) In terms of Corporate Governance Guidelines & to adopt best practices therein, the
Company has ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ in place.
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(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

Your Company has filed report on Corporate Governance in specified format to
CONCOR (holding company) & DPE within stiputated time.

Compliance with the requirement of these guidelines are detailed in this report.
FHEL has been following Presidential Directives.and Guidelines issued by the Govt. of
India from time to time regarding reservation of SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically

Handicapped & Ex-Servicemen in letter and spirit.

No Expenditure has been debited in the Books of Accounts, which is not for the purpose
of business.

The Company has not incurred any expense which is personal in nature and incurred for
the Board of Directors and Top Management.

Details of Administrative and office (Other) expenses as percentage of total expenses -:

Fin.Year Admn. & Office (Other) Total Expenses Percentage of Admn.
Exp. (Rin Lakhs) {Xin Lakhs) & Office (Other) Expenses
Vis-a-vis Total
Expenses
2018-19 177.50 1010.85 17.56%
2017-18 130.23 1080.51 12.05%

Transactions with related parties as per requirements of Accounting Standards issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are disclosed in relevant notes to the
Balance Sheet of the Company.

The Company has an adequate risk assessment and minimization plan. Certificate of
compliance of applicable laws, is being placed before the Board.

Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI.
No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

" Financial Results : The Annual Report and quarterly un-audited financial results are regularly

posted by the Company on its website.

Annual Report : Annual Report containing inter-alia Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’
Report, Auditors’ Report and other information, is circulated to members and others entitled
thereto. Management Discussion & Analysis report forms a part of the Annual report.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

Name Date of Birth | Date of | Qualification | Expertise in specific | List of | Details  of
appointment | s functional areas Other Other
- Companies | Committee
in  which | Membershi
Directorsh | p
ip Held
Shri V. Kalyana | 28.09.1963 01.10.2016 B. Tech. | Ex-Railway Officer | Three® One™
Rama (Mech.), having wide experience in
ICWA the field of Engineering,
System Design, Railways
& multi-modal logistics
operation and Project
Planning and
Commissioning.
A 1. Container Corporation of India Ltd. 2. SIDCUL CONCOR Infra Company Ltd.. 3. CONCOR Air Ltd.

AN

Chairman of CSR Apex Committee in Container Corporation of India Ltd.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 31.07.2019 CHAIRMAN .

Page 7 of 7

20




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure & Developments :

Food/Agriculture and medical sectors are perhaps most important for the mankind and any
country. Accordingly, Food/Agri Sector is on priority list of present Indian government as
well. In the Agri sector, Fruits and Vegetables segment holds a prominent position. India
is a largest producer of vegetables and second largest producer of fruits in the world,
2,00,000 crores plus. This in itself is a proof that Fruits and Vegetables sector and
businesses dealing with it hold immense business potential. As per data available, nearly,
18% of the total Fruits and Vegetables production valuing approx. ¥ 36,000 crores plus
perishes every year due to non-availability of appropriate and adequate cold chain
infrastructure in the country. Hence, presents an excellent business opportunity.

Though, Fruits and Vegetables sector has its own challenges. Fruits & Vegetable business
in India is almost entirely unorganized. The farm sizes are small and traditionally growers
either bring their produce to nearby markets/ mandies or send the produce to commission
agents for sale. All the players in the supply chain growers, commission agents, other
middlemen and retailers, are totally unorganized. In recent past a few retail chains are also
moving slowly and are developing formats which can generate profits. Due to the
perishable nature of the commodity, the emphasis on fresh produce in retail chains is
very low and this also is bought from nearby mandies only. Further, the country lacks
Cold Chain infrastructure and therefore, generally during the season we see glut in the
market & prices dip to unsustainable levels. All factors mentioned above lead to losses
of produce. :

Most of the Cold Store facilities available are suitable and used for Potato Storage. There
is a gap with respect to availability of state of the art Cold Chain Infrastructure &
Knowledge of Storage of other Fruits & Vegetables. This presents both a problem & an
opportunity in this sector.

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA Store for storage
of apples. With the modifications being carried out we will be able to offer services which
will accommodate traditional storage practices with better results due to the state of art
technology. Further, encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits,
private sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in
the country. In last 10 years, many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in apple
growing states of Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir. As on date the estimated CA
Storage capacity in the country is 1.5 lac MT approx. This exponential increase in the
capacity has resulted in rather stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving
precious foreign exchange for the country. Despite all these developments the import of
apples and other fruits, is still increasing exhibiting further growth potential of CA storage
in the country.
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SWOT ANAYLYSIS (Strength & Weakness) :

Strengths -:

a) Fruits & Vegetable market in India is huge (approx. Z 2,00,000 Crore +) & high
percentage (i.e. 18%) of perish ability holds tremendous business potential for Cold
Chain Infrastructure segment.

b) The increase in the disposable income in hand of the consumer has led to year round
demand for apples and hence larger demand for CA Storage.

c) Being in operation for last 12 years the target customers are reasonably sure of our
storage facility.

d) Being a PSU, the transparent and uniform policies and dealings with all leads to better
confidence among the clients.

e) There is huge latent demand for quality produce, as country is importing large
quantities of Fruits.

f) High Margins in this trade are possible, resulting in higher demand potential.

Weaknesses -:

a) The sector is highly unorganized.

b) Smaller players like growers are not able to reap the benefit of long term CA Storage

due to poor financial risk taking capacity.

¢)  Lack of storage cost bearing potential of other Fruits and Vegetables and also the

other products like rice, grains etc.

d) Lack of knowledge of Pre-Harvest care and Post-Harvest Management among the

clients leading to lesser interest in storing other products.

¢) Retail Chains have not come up as expected and so organized distribution is not

possible.

f) The trade is by & large on credit to stakeholders who do not have bankable credentials.

Opportunity & Threats :

Opportunities -:

a)

The proven results of apple storage in CA Stores in last 12 years has led to increased
storage and the number of clients and hence bigger business opportunity.
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b) Improved living standards have led to higher and round the year demand of fruits in
the country and hence increased emphasis on long term storage of Fruits and
Vegetables.

c) Since every year fruit imports is growing impressively, it shows customers are
preferring quality fruit and thus organized business can make a significant
contribution.

d) FHEL has converted part of its facility in to custom bonded cold storage warehouse.
This type of the facility is one of the first in Delhi NCR. The endeavour has already
started reaping benefits and we have started receiving cargo. Presently, walnuts and
apples are stored in the custom bonded area.

e) GOL/MOA has started a TOPS scheme. Under this scheme agriculture produces like
tomatoes, onions and potatoes are to be stored during the season as buffer stock with
an objective to offload the same in market during off season or periods of short supply.
FHEL is negotiating with NAFED for storage of onions at its facility.

Threats -:

a) High Capital cost leading to high rental rates.

b) Big investments made by private sector parties, like commission agents, growers etc,

by making both backward and forward linkages leading to shortening of the supply
chain.

¢) Non- availability of trained Manpower.

d) Increasing competition from Private player who have set up CA store in last few
years.

e) Unethical practices of differential pricing adopted by the private player.

f) Nimbleness of private player by adapting to newer conditions like poor crop, glut in
the market, negotiating with big clients etc.

g) Offering bigger basket of services to the clients like free space for packing, extended
credit period to the clients on the basis of their goodwill etc.

Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance

The Company is dealing in logistics of fresh fruits. All the activities of the Company revolve
around this business and all the operations are in India. As such, there is no other reportable
segment defined by Accounting Standard INDAS-108 related to Operating segment.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy :

The Company has in place well defined roles, responsibilities and authorities for
employees at various levels. This coupled with robust internal MIS systems, ensures
appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring. Adherence to these
processes is monitored through frequent internal audits. The Company has internal audit
system that requires internal audit firm to certify the appropriateness of internal controls in
operation and checks deviations from laid down procedures. The Internal Auditor is the
external firm directly reporting to management at higher level, thus ensuring its
independence. Reports of internal auditor are reviewed and compliances are ensured.
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SECURED LOANS

Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2018-19.

UNSECURED LOAN

As on 31.03.2019, total outstanding loan (unsecured) due to holding Company (CONCOR)
stood at ¥ 37.53 Cr. (inclusive of ¥ 30 Cr. for F/Y 2014-15, T 1.90 Cr. for F/Y 2015-16, %
4.50 Cr. for F/Y 2016-17 and  0.55 Cr. for F/Y 2017-18 and Z 0.58 Cr. taken during FY

2018-19) at the interest rate of 6.58% p.a. Apart from this, Company has interest accrued &
due on borrowings of ¥ 17.91 Cr. on 31.03.2019.

In order to improve the financial/cash flow position of FHEL, CONCOR’s Board in April,
2019 approved on request the conversion into Equity Share Capital of FHEL, the
outstanding loan of ¥ 37.53 Cr. along-with interest accrued and due of ¥ 17.91 Cr. (Net of
TDS) as on 31.03.2019 towards CONCOR plus further interest accruals (Net of TDS) on
the said loan till conversion of said loan into Equity, after increase of Authorized Share
Capital from ¥ 200 Cr. to 250 Cr. and Valuation of shares of FHEL by Registered Valuer.

Shri Yashlok Dubey, Registered Valuer vide Valuation Report dated 13.06.2019, reported
the fair value of each share of FHEL as on 31% March, 2019 as 2 6.14/- and mentioned that
the issue price in terms of Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 cannot be less than face
value of ¥ 10/-, hence share may be issued at ¥ 10/- per share.

On 14™ June, 2019, FHEL issued and allotted 5,58,94,327 Equity Shares of Z 10/- each to
CONCOR on Rights basis towards conversion of outstanding loan of Z 37,53,00,000 along-
with interest accrued and due of T 17,90,76,432 (Net of TDS) as on 31.03.2019 to
CONCOR plus further interest accruals (Net of TDS) on the said loan till conversion of
said loan into Equity i.e. 14.06.2019 of ¥ 45,66,836/- aggregating to T 55,89,43,268/-
(rounded off to ¥ 55,89,43,270/-), after increase of Authorized Share Capital of FHEL from
Z 200 Cr. to ¥ 250 Cr. with due approvals.

With such conversion of outstanding loan & interest into Equity Share Capital, Issued,
Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital of Company increased from 159.12 Cr. to ¥
215.01 Cr. on 14.06.2019.

Fixed Assets
(XinCr.)

Year Ended March 31 2019 2018 ' %age Incr. (Decr.)
Original Cost of Assets 67.93 77.57 (12.43)
Less : Accumulated Dep.  39.59 42.70 (7.28)
Net Fixed Assets 28.34 34.87
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16-

As on 31.03.2019, there was no closing stock of fruits in FHEL.
Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are 258.62% of operating income of the year.
Cash & Cash Equivalent

The Company keeps available cash in flexi Deposits with Banks.

Income

Income from operations increased from % 0.01 Cr. in FY 2017-18 to 0.62 Cr. in
F/Y 2018-19.

Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales increased from X 0.78 Cr. in FY 2017-18 to ¥ 1.30 Cr. in FY 2018-19.
Other Expenses

Other expenses increased from X 1.30 Cr. in FY 2017-18 to X 1.78 Cr. in FY 2018-
19.

Employee Remuneration

The Employee Cost has decreased from X 0.74 Cr in FY 2017-18 to X 0.21 Cr. in
FY 2018-19.

Material Devélogments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations Front,
including number of people employed

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer’s strategic objective. As on 31.03.2019, there
were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two way

communication, participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and
motivation of the employees.
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17.

18.

®

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU),
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government
from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicapped and
Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2019, there were 03-General and 01- SC
employee working in FHEL.

Environment Protection and Conservation, Technological Conservation,
Renewable Energy Developments, Foreign Exchange Conservation

Measures taken for environmental protection and conservation:

The company has facility for rainwater harvesting pits at the CA Store, Rai where all the
rain water collected (on roof top of the store and pavement) is re-charged to the ground.

Air pollution is arrested by proper installation of chimney of DG Sets as per the norms of
Pollution control board.

Sound pollution of DG Sets is avoided by proper installation of Insulated canopy.

Disposal of sewer is made to the septic tank at CA Store, Rai, thereby causing no ground
pollution.

Water conservation is achieved by collecting waters in 442KL water tanks and timely
detection and rectification of water leakages.

Foreign Exchange Conservation :

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA cum Cold Store
for storage of apples. Encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits
private sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in
the country. In last 10 years many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in Himachal
Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir. As on date the estimated CA Storage capacity in the
country is 1.5 lac MT approx. This exponential increase in the capacity has resulted in
rather stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving precious foreign exchange
for the country. Despite all these developments the import of apples and other fruits is still
increasing exhibiting further growth potential of CA storage in the country.

Qutlook :

India is a huge country and the market for quality fruit & vegetables is growing rapidly.
India is the second largest producer of Fruits & Vegetables in the world and this
business is in excess of nearly ¥ 2,00,000 Crores. Out of this nearly 18% worth of fruit
& vegetables perish due to lack of Cold Chain Infrastructure and lack of organized
distribution and marketing. Hence the opportunity available is huge.
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(i)

(iii)
@iv)

19.

20.

21.

The country is prospering, leading to higher disposable income available in common
man’s hand. This has fuelled the demand for healthier food products like Fruits and
Vegetables round the year, leading to higher demand for cold chain infrastructure across
the country.

Increasing trend exhibited by the import of Fruits and Vegetables.

Encouragement to FDI. The foreign companies are bringing the latest knowhow in the
country thereby creating newer business opportunity.

Risks & Concerns :

FHEL had identified the possible risks arising in the key areas of the company and also
formulated risk management /mitigation measures.

Major risks involved are -:

(i)  The business is dependent on weather conditions, particularly rainfall. It can be
adversely impacted with hail storm during pre-harvest period.

(ii)  Unorganized nature of the trade.

(iii) Un-economical small farm holdings

(iv) Lack of trained manpower

(v)  Local competition

(vi) Unethical practices adopted by private players.

(vii) Differential pricing vis a vis transparent and uniform policy adopted by PSU’s.

Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures is reviewed by Audit Committee
and Board periodically.

Corporate Social Responsibili CSR

Being a loss making entity, FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure towards CSR in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Cautionary Statement
Statements in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis,
describing the Company’s objectives, projections and estimates, expectations,
predictions etc. may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of the
applicable laws and regulations. Forward looking statements contained herein are
subject to certain risks and uncertainities that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements. Actual results,
performances or achievements may vary materially from those expressed or
implied due to economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental
factors such as litigation and industrial relation etc. Readers are cautioned not to
place undue conviction on the forward looking statements.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 31.07.2019 CHAIRMAN

Page 7 of 7
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Annexure to Directors’ Report
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

@) The details of various measures taken during the year under various heads of
Energy Conservation are as follows -:

1. POWER CONSUMPTION __ FOR  REFRIGERATION AND AIR
CONDITIONING, AUXILIARY UNITS

@ Energy Saving Screw Compressors and Chillers have been installed for
refrigeration of CA Store, Processing Area Air Conditioning and Office building.
Also, Variable frequency drives (VFDs) have been used for Refrigeration
compressors, Cooling coil fan motors (312 motors), Air cooling unit fan motors for
Air-conditioning (51 motors), Cooling tower fan motors (6 motors), Carbon dioxide
scrubbers (12 motors)

(b) Cooling towers and Condenser water pumps are operated based on ambient
conditions and actual requirement.

© Optimization of Running of refrigeration compressors and air conditioning system.

(d)  Cleaning and replacement of air filters for air compressors, nitrogen generator
compressors and diesel generators.

2. Lighting:

Energy Conservation in lighting is achieved by use of Energy efficient tube lights for entire
plant, use of CFL’s for office building, use of electronic ballasts, cleaning of light fittings for
optimum utilization of light illumination and lighting voltage optimization. During the year
special care was taken to ensure that lights operated only in areas where it was required. Area
identified and implemented were External lighting, utility area, corridors, sorting hall, packing
hall, machine room, and office building.

3. Heat energy :

Loss/Gain of heat energy in cold room is prevented by optimum thermal insulation thickness for
stores and cladding for pipe lines for minimal heat loss/ gain, cleaning of chilled water tubes,
condenser water tubes and Minimum Infiltration of external Air to Cold Store and processing
area by proper sealing of incoming and exit gates.
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4. Fueloil:

By regular and proper preventive maintenance and calibrations of components of diesel
generators, minimum fuel consumption is ensured. By putting off Nitrogen Generator plant,
forklifts and stacker charging, the load on the DG is reduced and these equipments are run when
power supply is available from electricity Boards.

S. Water for cooling towers and processing :

Water conservation is achieved by use of electronic controllers for avoiding over flow for 442
KL water tanks, re-use of processed water, waste water and fruit washing water for horticulture
and timely detection and rectification of leakages.

6. Battery chargers for material handling equipments and other purposes:

Chargers are installed with automatic low current charging devices for energy saving.

Impact of measures taken for Energy Conservation

FHEL had changed its business model from procurement, storage & sale of apples to leasing
of CA space. As the crop has been exceptionally poor in 2017, demand for CA space has been
poor / negligible. Due to this, plant was not operated. Presently, the facility is being Re-
engineered. However, to conserve resources varied measures are being taken to reduce the
Electricity consumption. Electricity expenses for FY 2018-19 have been increased to T 1.16
Crore from ¥ 0.33 Cr. of FY 2017-18, as the business of chiller and custom bonded
warehouse is increasing day to day.

(ii)The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy-: NIL

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments-: NIL
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B, Technology absorption

(@

Efforts ~made  towards
technology absorption.

Due to changed business model of FHEL, no efforts were
made towards technology absorption. However mezzanines
have constructed to accommodate goods accordingly.

(i)

The Benefits derived like
product improvement, cost
reduction, product
development, and import
substitution.

Due to changed business model direct benefits are derived
to the company by attracting various customers dealing
quantity in small scale.

(iii)

In case of imported
technology (imported during
the last 3 years reckoned
from the beginning of the
financial year),  following
information may be
furnished

(a). Details of Technology
imported

(b). Year of import

(c). Whether the technology
been fully absorbed

(d) If not fully absorbed,
areas where absorption has
not taken place and reasons
therefore.

1. Carel make PLC & Data Logger made in Italy for
temperature control.
2. Danfoss make system control for compressor rack.
. Imported Compressor rack, CO2 Scrubber etc are being
used.

W

2018-19

No.

Suitable substitute were not available

@iv)

Expenditure incurred
onR&D

(i) Capital

(i) Recurring

(iii) Total

(iv) Total R & D expenditure
as a percentage of turnover

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

0




" FORM No.AOC-2

[Pursuant fo clause (h) of sub-section (3)'of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and - ‘

i Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 : S
Form for disclosure of particulats of contracts/arrangerients enteted into by the company with the related parties referred to. in sub-
secto n (1) of section 188 of the corr_:;panies Act, 2013 including certdin armis-length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or atrangements of transactwns notatarm’slength basisi-

\T

S, |Name of| Natwe - of | Duration | Salient features of | Justification Date - of | Amount |Date on whick §
No. | the related | eontracts/arrangeme | of contracts/arrangem | for entering | approval by | paid as | special
party and | nts/transactions contracts/ | ents/transactions, |intoe  such|the - advances, | resolution  was §
nature of : afrangeme | including -value, if contracts/Arr | Board/Audit ifany passed  ink
relationshi :  nts/transa | any angements/tr | committee general meeting §
p | ctions B ansactions ' u/s 188(1)(h) 1
----- - NIL I — »
2. Details of contracts or arrangementsortransactioné atarm’s length basis:- Lo ‘
S. Name of the | Nature of | Duration of | Salient features of | Date of approval by the | Amoun | Date on which E
No. | related party | contracts/ contracts/arra | contracts/arrangeme | Board/Audit committee t paid | special S |
- | and nature of | arrangements ngements/tran | nts/transactions, S C as | resolition was §
relationship | /transactions - | sactions including value, if | advanc | passed - in |}
: S any - ‘ es;, if | general
any meeting  u/s
: o A . ' _ - 188(1)(h)
Container Holding- On going To provide sufficient | Refer Note-1 - N/A N/A
Corporation of | Company : : handling & storage '
facilities for

1 | IndiaLtd

perishiables in India,
with a view to
reduce/control

wastages - of
perishiable - food

T

Note: _
‘1. FHEL was

_ - set up with due approval of Board of Dlrectorsof CONCOR during the relevant period & transactxonsmth holding -
company are in normal course of business and at arm’s length, The particulars of transactions with related party are stated in the
_ notesto Financial statements of Company for F.Y. 2018-19. . ' , ' : B

prdauctﬁm India.
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN U51909DL2006G01145734

2.| Registration Date 01.02.2006

3.| Name of the Company M/S. FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (A WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF CONTAINER CORPORATION OF
INDIA LTD.) :

4.| Category/Sub-category | GOVERNMENT COMPANY

of the Company

5.] Address of the CONCOR BHAWAN, C - 3, MATHURA ROAD, NEW DELHI -
Registered office & 110076.
contact details Tel.: 011-41673093-96

Fax.:011-41673112
Website : www.fhel.co.in
6.| Whether listed company | NO '

7.| Name, Address & NIL

contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10
% or more of the total turnover of the company)

S.No. | Name and Description of main NICCode ofthe | % to total turnover of the

products / services Product/service | company
1 Leasing/Renting of 52101 75%
Chambers/Warehouse ‘

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S. |NAME AND | CIN/GLN |HOLDING/ | % of Applicable
NO | ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIA |shares
THE RY held Section
COMPANY
/ASSOCIAT
E
1 CONTAINER L63011DL1988 [HOLDING CO. (100 2(87)
CORPORATION OF [G0OI030915
INDIA LTD.

L2




(IV) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of the year %

Shareholders the year Chang
D | Physical Total % | De | Physical Total % €
e . of |ma of durin
m Tot |t Tot g
a al al the
t Sha Sha | Year

res res

A.Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ - - - -

HUF i 3 A

b) Central Govt | -

c) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other - | 14,56,67,721 14,56,67,721 100 | - 15,91,17,721 1591,17,721 |{ 100 | Nil

Government |

Company -

Container

Corporation of

India Ltd.

Sub-total (A) - 1 14,56,67,721 | 14,56,67,721 | 100 | - 15,91,17,721 15,91,17,721 | 100 | Nil

8))

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs-
Individu

als

b) Other
individu

als

¢) Bodies
Corporat

e

d) Banks/F
I

e} Any

other

Sub-total (A)
(2)
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Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A)=
A(1) +A(2)

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

15,91,17,721

15,91,17,721

100

Nil

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture

Capital Funds

f) Insurance

Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2.Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto X 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
specify)

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

3y




Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+(C)

14,56,67,721

14,56,67,721

100

15,91,17,721

15,91,17,721

100

Nil

(4 Y




ii) Shareholding of Promoters -

SN | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year | % change
Name year in .
No. of Shares % of | %of No. of Shares % of | %of shareh.oldn
total | Shares total | Shares ng during
Shares of | Pledged / Shares | Pledged / the year
the encumbe ofthe | encumber
company | red to compa | ed to total
total ny shares
shares
1 CONTAINER 14,56,67,721 | 100 - 15,91,17,721 100 - NIL
CORPORATION
OF INDIA LTD.
(A PSU UNDER
MINISTRY OF
RAILWAYS) &
SIXCONCOR
NOMINEES
HOLDING ONE
SHARE EACH

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of shares | % oftotal | No. of shares | % of total
shares of shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year 14,56,67,721 | 100 14,56,67,721 | 100
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.)- Rights issue
of 1,34,50,000 Equity Shares of
X 10/ each in April, 2018.
Shares allotted to CONCOR
through CMD/CONCOR on 20t
April, 2018
At the end of the year 14,56,67,721 | 100 15,91,17,721 100

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the
of the year year
No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares | % of total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

At the end of the year (or on the date
of separation, is separated during the
year)

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN

Shareholding of each Directors and
each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the
beginning
of the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the

year

No. of % of total
shares shares of
the

company

No. of % of total
shares shares of
the

company

Sh. Sanjay Swarup, Director
(As CONCOR Nominee)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat

equity etc.):

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

At the end of the year

Shri Rahul Mithal Director,
(As CONCOR Nominee)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat

equity etc.):

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

At the end of the year

Sh. P.K. Agrawal, Director
(As CONCOR Nominee)

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat

equity etc.):

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Ceased to be Director w.e. f.
09.04.2018
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V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due

for payment.
(X In Lakhs)

Secure.d Loans Unsecured . Total
exclud‘mg Loans Deposits Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of

the financial year

i) Principal Amount Nil 3695.00 Nil 3695.00

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil 1568.66 Nil 1568.66

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil --- Nil -—--

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 5263.66 Nil 5263.66

Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year

* Addition Nil 58.00 Nil 58.00

* Reduction NiL | - Nil |-

Net Change Nil 58.00 Nil 58.00

Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount Nil 3753.00 Nil 3753.00

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil 1790.76 Nil 1790.76

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil -- Nil --

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 5543.76 Nil 5543.76

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit

- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify
Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

2%




B. Remuneration to other directors

SN. [ Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Total Amount
' ' (% in Lakhs)
1 | Independent Director Shri Sanjeev S. Shah
Fee for attending board /committee 3.20 3.20
meetings
Commission Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil
Total (1) 3.20 3.20
2 | Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board /committee - Nil Nil
meetings
Commission Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil Nil
Total (B)=(1+2) 3.20 3.20
Total Managerial 3.20 3.20
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act N.A. N.A.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

MD/MANAGER/WTD
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO* CS* CFO* Total

1 Gross salary 33,37,859/- | 17,10,500/- | 39,28,399/- | 89,76,758/-
(a) Salary as per provisions 32,99,236/- | 17,10,500/- | 39,27,079/- | 89,36,815/-
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 38,623/- - 1,320/- 39,943/-
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 |

2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil

4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil
others, specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total 33,37,859/- |17,10,500/- | 39,28,399/- | 89,76,758/-

* Remuneration paid by CONCOR (Holding Company)




VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description | Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | ifany (give
Act Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment . NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Date:31.07.2019 (V. Kalyana Rama)
Place: New Delhi _ Chairman

Ho




Amit Agrawal & Associates

Company Secretaries

Office: H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092, INDIA
Ph.: +91-11-22024525, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail: amitagcs@gmail.com, amit2kas@yahoo.com

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Concor Bhawanc-3 Mathura Road
Opp. Apollo Hospital. New Delhi-110076, IN

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Fresh &
Healthy Enterprises Limited, (herewith referred as ‘the Company’) for the year ended on 31%
March, 2019 as stipulated in ‘Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and
Public Enterprises Government of India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in
above mentioned guidelines. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statement of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as
stipulated in above mentioned DPE guidelines.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency of the effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

Place : Delhi For Amit Agrawal & Associates
- (Companies Secretaries)
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M. No. F5311
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Amit Agrawal & Associates

) - Company Secretaries
Office: H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Dethi-110092, INDIA

! Ph.: +91-11-22024525, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail: amitagcs@gmail.com, amit2kas@yahoo.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited!

CONCOR Bhawanc-3 Mathura Road :
Opp Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-110076 .

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
(hereinafter called the Company) having its registered office at Concor Bhawanc-3 Mathura
Road Opp Apollo Hospital New Dethi-110076. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that

provided me a reasonable basis forevaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2019 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also!that the Company has proper Board-processes and

compliance mechanism in place to-the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited for the financial year ended on 31
March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(iii) Other laws applicable specifically tcl) the Company namely:




a) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

b) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

c) Payment of Minimum Wages Act, 1948

d) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 .

e) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal
Act), 2013

f) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

g) Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948;

h) Indian Trust Act, 1882 created for PF purposes for its employees.

i) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

j) Food Safety and Standard of India Act, 2011

k) The Agricultural Produce Marketing Act,1998

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

However, During the period under review, provisions of the following regulations were not
applicable to the Company because of clause (I) no FDI and ECB has been taken by the
Company since incorporation and for (II)&(II) clauses below the Company is unlisted
Company. Hence, comments are not required to be made in respect of these clauses:

L. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules and regulation made there under to
the extent Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

. The Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’).

III.  The Listing Agreement with any Stock Exchange.
We Mer report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent Director.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.




Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. ‘

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct
and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books, of accounts has not been
reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit by
other designated professional

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events /actions in pursuance
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. having a major bearing
on the Company's affairs.

Place : Dethi & Associates

Date : 30/07/2019

/' (Proprietor)
M. No. F5311
C.P. No. : 3647
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Amit Agrawal & Associates

Company Secretaries

Office: H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Dethi-110092, INDIA
Ph.: +91-11-22024525, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail: amitagcs@gmail.com, amit2kas@yahoo.com

To,

The Members,
Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Concor Bhawanc-3 Mathura Road

Opp. Apollo Hospital. New Delhi-110076, IN

>

Dear, Sir/Madam
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company
.Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regnlations; standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company

) é: Date: 30/07/2019
*0 P 3647 ‘7 //
: Place: Delhi

Members hip No.5311
Certificate of Practice No. 3647
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprisss Limited
Statement of Balance sheet
As at March 31,2019
(AN smounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note No. Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
ASSETS
{1) Non-current assats
(a} Property, plant and equipment 2 2,833.99 3,485.93
{b) Intangible assets 0.5 0.80
{c) Capital work in progress 3 88.47
{d) Financial assets
(i) Loans 4 . .
(li) Other financial assets H 45.80 45.50
{e) Deferrad tax assets (Net) - -
{f) Other non-current assets 6 24.87 2548
2,993.39 355271
{2) Curvent assets
{a} irwentories 7 3892 4202
(b} Finencial sssets
(i} Trade recsivables 8 160.01 163.40
(i) Loans 9 - 0.07
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 10 044 6.87
{iv) Othar bank balances 11 1,349.82 6.52
{iv} Othar financial assats 12 8.28 520
(¢} Cusrent tax assets {Nat) 13 28.09 29.06
(d) Othar current assets 14 3105 547
_1,636.61 _259.61
Total assets 4,609.93 3,817.32
EQUITY AND LIASILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 15,91L..77 14,565.77
(b) Other equity
Reserves and surplus 16 {17,216.15) {16,377.17)
Total equity (2,304.38) {1,810.40)
{1) Noarcucrent labilitles
() Financial Uabilities
(i) Borrowings - B
[ii) Other financial liabilities . .
(a) Long-term provisions 17 951 7.22
{c) Deferved tax lisbilities (Net) - .
{d) Other non-current liabilitins - =
: 9.51 7.22
{2} Current Habilities
{s) Financial Yabllities
{i) Borrowings 18 5,547.95 5,263.66
{ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding duss of micro enterprises 0.05 .
and small anterprises )
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditars othar
than micre enterprisas and small enterprises 19 917 1521
{iii) Other financial liabilities 20 341.83 337.08
{b) Other current liahiiities 21 4.59 348
{c} Short-term prowisions 22 1.27 0.87
590486 5,620.50
Total liabliities 5,914.37 5,627.72
Total equity and Jlabilities 4,609.99 381732
The accompanying notes are an intogral part of the 1tos3
financial statements
As par our report of aven date attached
For Anll Ashok & Assodates For and pn behalf of Bow: ir
dmtvundAmounhnt et O
MM@A\W V.Kalana ama  Wahad Mithal *h
Lo Chalrman Diractor
CA A Maheshware——"""
Pariner : Kf\- C’«/ j /'
" M.No. 538665 }
Date:24.04.2019 Suman Lsta
Flace: New Dethl Cornpany Secratary




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)
For the year For the year
Particulars Note No. ended March ended March 31,
31,2019 2018
I Revenue from operations 23 61.87 1.24
Il Otherincome 24 110.14 16.77
Il Total revenue (I + 1) 172.01 18.01
IV Expenses
(a} Purchases of traded goods 25 - -
(b} Change ininventories 26 3.10 17.81
(c) Direct expenses 27 127.21 59.86
(d} Employee benefits expenses 28 . 21.47 73.60
{e) Finance costs 29 246,78 295.93
(f) Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 434.79 503.08
(g) Other expenses 31 177.50 130.23
Total expenses 1,010.85 1,080.51
V Loss before tax {lll - 1V) (838.84) {1,062.50)
VI Tax Expense
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Deferred Tax - -
Total tax expense - -
Vil Loss after tax for the period (V - Vi) (838.84) (1,062.50)
Vill Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be regycled to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan, net of income tax (0.14) 18.41
Total other comprehensive income for the perlod (0.13) 18.41
IX Total comprehensive income for the period (VI + VIl) (838.98) {1,044.09)
X Loss per equity share:
(1) Basic (Rs.) (0.53) (0.73)
(2} Diluted {Rs.) {0.53) (0.73)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1to53

As per our report of even date attached
For Anil Ashok & Assoclates

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountant
") o) . —C \H, — pu
[Ny
A p\ %\,\\.\g V. Kalyana Rama Rahul Mithal “=Arora
CA Amit Maheshwari Chairman Director 0
—
Partner g
M.No. 538665 —g&‘- "
Date:24.04.2019 Suman Lata "
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary f Finance Officer




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Statement of Changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019

{All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Equity share Securities Retained earnings Totat
Particulars capital premium reserve ’
Balance at March 31, 2017 14,566.77 41.33 (15,374.41) (766.31)
Profit for the year - - (1,062.50) {1,062.50)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 1841 18.41
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (1,044.09) (1,044.09)
Balance at March 31, 2018 14,566.77 41.33 (16,418.50) {1,810.40)
Changes during the period 1,345.00 - 1,345.00
Profit for the year - - (838.84) (838.84)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (0.14) (0.14)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {838.98) (838.98)
Balance at March 31, 2019 15,911.77 41.33 {17,257.48}) (1,304.38)

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Anil Ashok & Associates
Chartered Accountant

" CA Amit Maheshwari
Partner

" M.No. 538665

Date:24.04.2019
Place: New Delhi

V. Kalyana Rama
Chalrman

1ta53

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

T Q.

“ACV

uman Lata
Company Secretary

ug

Rahul Mithal M. I..Arora
Director

54;.
Ch‘ inance Officer




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limitad
Cash Flow Statement
for the yesr ended March 31, 2019
For the year ended Far the yese ended
Particulars Notes No. March 31, 2019 oasrch 31, 2018
A, Cash flow from operating activities:
Net loss after tax {838.84) (1,062.50)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation a434.79 503.08
tnterest income (96.86) (3.93)
interest expense 246.78 295.93
Net {Profit)/ lass on sale / discarding of fixed assets 83.65 {3.19}
Opersting profit before working capital changes (170.48) {270.61)
for changes in working capital : ’
- Decraase in trade payables {6.19) (0.15)
- Decraase other financial ftabliites 47% 4174
- Increase/(decrease) other non current financial llabilites
~ Increase in short term provisions 040 (15.91)
- ) in long term p 215 (56.45)
- Increase In other current labilities 111 {3.25)
- Increase/{decrease) in non-current Jabilities
- Decrease in trade receivables 339 3.09
- Decrease [n inventories 3.10 17.81
- Decrease in long term loans - 9.60
- (Increase)/decrease in short term loans 0.07 5.18
. other curvent financial assets {2.08) 0.20
- Increase other non current financlal sssets {0.30) {0.26)
- Decrease In other cusrent assets {25.58) {0.33)
- Decrease In other non current assets 0.61 264
Cash {used in)/generated by aperating activities (189.05) (166.70)
- Income taxes (paid)/ refund 0.97 (5.72)
Net cash {used in)/generated by opersting activities {188.08) {1m2.42}
B. Cash flow trom Investing Activitles:
Purchase of fixed assets {212.93) -
Sale of fixed assets 34698 103,54
Additian In Capital Work in progress (88.47) -
Interest received 96.86 393
Net cash genevated by Investing activitles 142.44 10747
€ Cash fow from Finanding Activities:
Proceeds from short term borrowings 58.00 175.00
Repayment of shoct term borrowings - {70.00)
Equity received from Holding company 1,345.00 -
Intarest paid __(20.68) 16008)
Net cash (used in}/g d by 1,378.32 44.92
Net increase/{decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 1332.68 [20.03)
Cashand cash fents at the b of the vesr _13.39 3342
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,11, 18 133607 1339
Notes:
Cath and cash equivalents included in the cash flow the fall
Cash and cash equivalents compeise:
Cash in hand - -
Balance with scheduled bank in current accounts {3.75) 6.87
Other bank balances comprises:
Depasits having original maturity more than 3 Months and fess than 12 months 222
Deposits having original maturity loss than 03 months 1,345.26
Bank Balances held as margin money or as security against guarantees 4.56 4.30
e 13
Non cash transactions:
The company did not enter into any non cash investing and finencing activities which are not reflected in the statement of cash flows.
The accampanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 11053

This is the Batance Sheat raferred to in our report of even data

For Anil Ashol & Assodates Fonmlonb-h-lld rd of Directors
Chartered Accountant

O Wotnadavotnt.

V. lalyam Rama Rahul Mithat

Chairman Director
CA Amit Maheshwarl —
Partner ol &’
M.No. 538665
Date: 24.04.2019 Surman Lata
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chhf

uQ

M L Arora

i.u

nce Officer




Fresh and Healthy Enterprise Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Corporate Information

Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited (the “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Container
Corporation of India Limited (CONCOR) is engaged in procurement and sale of fruits, creation of
cold storage infrastructure in India and leasing of Controlled Atmosphere (CA) chambers and allied
services, to provide complete cold chain logistics solutions to the various stakeholders in this field.
It is classified as Union Government Company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Delhi.
The Company was incorporated in 2006 and is a wholly subsidiary company of Container
Corporation of India.

Application of New or Revised Ind AS

At the preparation of these financial statements, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), in March
2019, notified a new IND AS-116 (Leases) substituting the existing IND AS- 17. The impact of new
IND AS has been summarized as follows:

The new IND AS-116 has been notified to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by requiring them to recognise Right-of-Use ("ROU") assets and lease liabilities on
their balance sheet. While the asset has to be depreciated as per IND AS-16 (PPE), liability has to
be adjusted over the period of lease, Under this standard, disclosures are required to be made
with the objective of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The Company will be required to recognize and
measure leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented using a retrospective method, with certain practical expedients available.

The standard will be “effective for Financial Statements beginning April 1, 2019. As per
management understanding this standard will impact on the Balance Sheets, but will not have a
material impact on the Profit and Loss Statements. The most significant impact will be the
recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities for lessees, while accounting of leases as lessor will
remain substantially unchanged.

As a lessee, this standard will apply to leasing of land at Rai, Sonipat & Kingal, Shimla.

The company is evaluating the provisions of this IND AS and its effect on the financial statements
is being evaluated.

o : IFICA OUN P 1

1.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind ASs”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Upto the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. These are Company’s second Ind AS financial
statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2015.

Al/f :




1.2

1.3

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

under the historical cost basis except financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
inception. -

Property, plant and equipment:

(i) Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if
any, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, finance costs. Cost is net of interest on capital advances and duty
credits and is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. In
respect of assets due for capitalization, where final bills/claims are to be
received/passed, the capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final
adjustments, for costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of
ascertainment of actual cost and finalisation of claim. Items such as spare parts,
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in accordance with this
Ind AS 16 when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

(if) Provision for stamp duty at the prevailing rate is made by the company at the time of
capitalization of the amount paid for acquisition of land & is capitalised as part of the
cost of Land.

Depreciation/amortisation:

(iii)  Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. -

{iv) Land leases where the lease term is for the significant economic life of the asset are
considered as finance leases. Such leases are included in property plant and
equipment and are deprecated over the lease period. Freehold land or perpetual land
leases are not deprecated. Land leases where the lease term is not for the significant
economic life of land are considered as operating leases and are classified as
prepayments. Such leases are amortized over the lease term.

The estimated useful life and deprecation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

) An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets: Intangible assets is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on computer software, which is not an integral
part of hardware, is capitalised as an intangible asset. The cost of software includes license
fee and implementation cost and is capitalised in the year of its implementation. Software is
amortized over five years being management's estimate of life of assets over which economic
benefits will be derived. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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1.6

1.7

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at cost or Net Realizable Value (NRV), whichever is lower. Cost
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on specific identification
method for fresh fruits and First in First out (FIFO) method for other inventories.

Employee benefits:

(i) Liability for gratuity, leave salary, sick leave and medical reimbursements benefits
payable to employees is provided for on accrual basis using the Projected Accrued
Benefit Method (Projected Unit Credit Method with control period of one year) done by
an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

* service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements);

* net interest expense or income; and

* remeasurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or
loss in the line item [‘employee benefits expenses]. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit
or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Termination benefits are immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss
account. A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restructuring costs.

w




1.8

1.9

1.10

(ii) Contribution to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund and Family Pension
Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss as and when accrued. '

(iii} The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid for the
services rendered are recognized as an expense during the period when the
employees render the services.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates. Sales are
recognized when the significant risk and reward of ownership of goods are transferred to the
customer and no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realization exists.

Income from automatic sorting and grading through machine and handling income is
recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract, provided there Is no
significant uncertainty exist regarding the amount of consideration.

Interest income from deposits is recognized on accrual basis. Interest other than deposits is
recognised at the time when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realization
exists. Interest on income tax refunds are accounted for on the finalization of assessments.

Rental income, cooling charges and income from space for sorting packing machine/
strapping machine is recognized on accrual basis.

Claims/counter-claims/penalties/awards:

Claims/counter-claims/penalties/awards are accounted for in the year of its settiement.

Taxes on income:

Income taxVexpense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
urr

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
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1.11

1.12

in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively, :

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions, contingent liabilitles & contingent assets:
(i) Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be  made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

(ii) Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made.

(iif) Contingent assets:

Contingent assets are not recognized in the accounts. However they are disclosed
when the possible right to receive exists.

1.13 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding

during the year.

sy




1.14

1.15

Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity

equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the result would be anti-
dilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
alt the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

(I) The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Company's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely
to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in
the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(ii) The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
‘the lessor is included in the Company balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of
the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's
general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured
solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in
the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
-such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
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1.16

1.17

1.18

incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Segment reporting

The Companies’s segmental reporting is in accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the board of directors, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, and has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

The company’s financial assets represents assets whose contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and these assets are held in a business model to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows at maturity consequentially in

accordance with Ind AS 109 these assets are carried at amortized cost using effective interest
rate.

The Company’s financial liabilities are not held for trading and are also carried at amortized
cost using effective interest rate.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset and financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are discharged. -
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.,

Impalrment of financial asset

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets,

Trade receivable

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision

. Mmatrix method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The provision matrix is

based on historical default rate observed over the expected life of the trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. Further receivables

W
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1.19

are segmented for this analysis where the credit risk characteristics of the receivables are
similar.

Other financial assets

Impairment loss on other financial assets is recognised based on the difference between the
present value of the expected cash flows and carrying value.

Key sources of uncertainties

Useful life of Property plant and Equipment and Intangible assets: As described at 1.3 and
1.4 above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and Intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The estimate of useful life may be
different on account of change in business environment and change in technology which
could have a material impact on the financial statement.
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limhted
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Allamounts are In ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 2 : Property, plant and equipment

Particulars

Tangible assets
Building

Plant and machinery
Computer

Furniture and fittings
Bins

Intangible assets
Software

Totai

Particulars

Balance at March 31, 2016
Additions
Disposals
Balance at March 31, 2017
Additions
Disposals
Balance at March 31, 2018
Additions

Disposals :
Balance at March 31, 2019

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Particulars

Balance at March 31, 2016

Depreciation/amortisation charge for the year
Disposals/adjustments

Balance at March 31, 2017
Depreciation/amortisation tharge for the period
Disposals/adjustments

Balance at March 31,2018
Depreciation/amortisation charge for the period

Disposals/adjustments

Balance at March 31, 2019

As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
1,410.07 1,275.44
1,405.28 1,732.99
3.04 4.60
1.40 1.67
14.20 471.23
2,833.99 3,485.93
0.25 0.80
0.25 0.80
2,834.24 3,486.73
Buillding Plant and Computer Furniture and Bins Total Software Grand total
machinery fittings
1,450.86 2,768.27 16.06 7.37 932.13 5,174.69 245 5,177.14
- 0.05 - - - ’ 0.05 - 0.05
- -~ - - {43.25) (43.25) - {43.25)
1,450.86 2,768.32 16.06 7.37 888.88 5,131.49 2.45 5,133.94
- - - - {160.14) (160.14) - {160.14)
1,450.86 2,768.32 16.06 7.37 728.74 4,971.35 245 4,973.80
196.69 16.24 - - 21293 - 212.93
- 13.28 - - (698.46) {711.74) - {711.74)
1,647.55 2,771.28 16.06 2.37 30.28 4,472.54 2.45 4,474.99
Building Plant and Computer  Furniture Bins Total Software Grand total
machinery and fittings
58.58 347.95 4.38 2.35 116.56 530.32 0.55 530.87
58.42 34411 4,25 233 112.47 521.58 0.55 522.13
{9.22} (9.22) {9.22)
117.00 692.06 9.13 4.68 219.81 1,042.68 1.10 1,043.78
58.42 343.27 233 1.02 97.49 502.53 0.58 503.08
- - - - ___{59.79) {59.79) - {59.79)
175.42 1,035.33 1146 5.70 257.51 1,485.42 165 1,487.07
62,06 342.86 1.56 0.27 27.49 434.24 0.55 434.79
- {12.19) - - (268.92) (281.11) - {281.11)
237.48 1,366.00 13.02 5.97 16.08 1,638.55 2.20 1,640.75




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Allamounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 3 : Capital work in Progress

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2019  March 31,2018
Capital work in progress 88.47
Total 88.47 -
Note -4: Loans
As at As at
Particulars March31,2019  March 31,2018
Secured, Considered Good - at amortised cost
Loans to employees including interest accrued - -
Total - -
Note - 5 : Other financial assets
Particulars Asat Asat
a March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Security deposits
- Govt. authorities 45.80 45.50
Total 45.80 45.50
Note -6 : Other non current assets
Particulars Asat Asat
Prepaid rent 4.98 5.37
Prepayments - leasehold land 19.89 20.11
Total 24,87 25.48
Note - 7 : Inventory
Particulars Asat Asat
articu March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 38.92 42.02
Total 38.92 42.02

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was Rs.3.10 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2018:

Rs.17.81 lakhs)

The mode of valuation of inventories :NRV/cost price whichever is less.

Trade Recelvables
Financial asset
Note - 8 : Trade Receivables

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Outstanding for period exceeding six Months 154.12 161.47
Outstanding for period less then six Months 5.89 1.93
Total 160.01 163.40




To tackle the credit default, Company has now adopted a policy of supplying material/ services against advance payment
or against Bank guarantee. The Company has filed the legal cases in respect of some of the customers and expects a

favourable outcome In all of the legal cases.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based
on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes Into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-
looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the

rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows.

cin Expected Credit  Expected Credit
loss(%) loss{%¢)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Outstanding for period less than six months - -
Outstanding for period exceeding than six months - -
Age of receivables
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Outstanding for period less than six months 5.89 1.93
Outstanding for period exceeding than six months 154,12 161.47
Total ’ 160.01 163.40
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
Year ended Year ended March
Particulars March 31,2019 31,2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 0 0
Addition in expected credit loss allowance 0 0
Amount written off 0 0
Balance at the end of the year 0 (o]

Details of the Company's largest customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade recelvables:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Mahaluxmi Cold Storage 15.23 15.23
RK Brothers 26.64 26.64
GAPL 85.73 85.73
Tarun Kumar 12.65 12.65
KFC, Dhalli - 6.78
The Company has filed the legal cases in respect of the following customers:;

As at As at
Parties March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
a) Cases where Arbitration/Legal case/Appeal has been filed '
(i) M/s GAPL 85.73 85.73
(if) KFC Dhalli - 6.78
{ii)Sanjeev Kumar 0.30 0.30
{iv)Tarun Kumar 12.65 12.65
{v) Ram Chandra & Sons 7.33 7.33
(vi)Mahalaxmi 15.23 15.23
{vii)R.K.Brothers 26.64 26.64

No provision is respect of the above mentioned receivables has been made in the books as Mana

favourable outcome in all of the above legal cases.
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Note -9: Loans

Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Secured, Considered good - at amortised cost :
Loans to employees including interest accrued - 0.07
Total - 0.07
Note - 10 : Cash and cash eqivalents

As at As at

(

Particulars March31,2019  March 31,2018
Balance with scheduled bank in current accounts 0.44 6.87
Cash in hand -
Total 0.44 6.87
Note - 11 : Other bank balances

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Deposits having original maturity more than 3 Months and less than 12 months - 2.22
Deposits having original maturity less than three months 1,345.26 -
Bank Balances held as margin money or security against guarantees 4.56 4.30
Total 1,349.82 6.52
Note - 12 : Other financial assets

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019  March31, 2018
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good -
- Govt. authorities 043 0.43
- Others 0.04 0.04
Claims recoverable 5.54 5.54
Others 2.27 0.19
Total 8.28 6.20
Note - 13 : Current tax assets {Net)

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2013  March31,2018
Advance income tax/TDS (Net of provisions) 28.09 29.06
Total 28.09 29,06
Current Assets
Non financial assets
Note - 14 ; Other current assets

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Advances to employees 1.30 0.22
GST (Input) 18.79 3.66
Interest accrued but not due 6.44 0.01
Prepaid rent 0.38 0.38
Prepayments - leasehold land 0.21 0.21
Prepaid expenses/ insurance 3.93 0.99
Total 31.05 5.47




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{All amounts are In T takhs uniess otherwise stated)

Nota 15 : Share capitat
As at Asat

Particulary March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Authorised :
20,00,00,000 Equity share @ Rs10/- par share (P.Y. 20,00,00,000 Equity Shares 20,000.00 20,000.00
af Rs 20/- per Share)

20,000.00 20,000.00
tssued, subscribed and paid up:
15,91,17,721 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each as at March 31, 2019: (P.Y.
14,56,67,721 Fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 1381177 1436877
Total 15,9177 14,566.77

Fully paid equity shares, which have s par value of Rs.10, carry one vote per shara and carry @ right to dividends.

Fully paid equity shares (in Lakhs)
Particulars Number of shares __ Share Capital {Amount)
Balance at March 31,2018 1,456.68 14,566.77
Changes during the year 2016-17 .
Balance as at March 31,2017 1,456.68 14,566.77
Changes during the year 2017.18 -
8alance as at March 31,2018 1,456.68 14,566.77
changes during the ysar 2018-19* 134,50 1,345.00
Balance as at March,2015 1,591.13 15,911.77
* Right Issue subszription by CONCOR
Detalls of shares held by the holding Y, its and
Particulars As at Aset
March 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2018
Container Corporation of india Limited, the holding company 1,591.18 1,456.68
Detalls of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
Particulary As ot As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
e e e ot S018
Number of shares -
Fully pald equity shaves (in Lakhs) hetg__ Mumber of shares held
Container Corparation of India Limited, the holding company 1,591.18 1,456.68
% holding of equity % holding of equity
shares —thares
Contalner Corporation of India Limited, the holding company 100% 100%
Note 16 : Reserves and surplug
Particulars . Asat Asat
March 31, 201 M3 1
Securities premium reservas 4133 41.33
Retained Eamings (17,257.48) {16,918.50)
(17,216.15) (16,377.17)
Note - 16.1 : Securitles pramiym reserves
Particul Asat Asut
ardculan March 31, 2039 March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 4133 4133
Movement during the year - -
Balance at the end of the ysar 41,33 41.33
Security premium reserve Is recorded for the difference betwaan the par value of a company’s shares and the total amount company has received forthe
shares issued. The Company can use the balance of the account for the purposes as specified in the islons of C ies Act, which includes to pay off
oquity expenses, which include underwriter faes. It can alsc be usad for the issuance of bonus shares and for costs or related 1o this i

Nota - 16.2 : Retained samings

Particul As ot Asat

culars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the yaar {16,418.50) (15,374.41)
Loss during the year {833.84} {1,062.50)
Other comprehensive Income arising from remeasuramant of defined banefit obligation {0.14) 18.41
Balance at the end of the yasr (17,257.48) {16,418.50)
Nate 17 ; Long term provisions
Particulars X Asat . Asat
Provision for employee banefits 9.51 7.22
Total 851 .
Note 18 : Borrowings ’

Asat Asat

Pacticulars h31,2019 2018
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Loans from related party 3753.00 3,695.00
Interest accrued on loans from refated party 1790.78 1,563.66
Bank overdraft 4.19 >

Total 554795 5,63.66




Summary of borrowing arrangements:

The company has taken foans from Container Corporation of Indla Limited, the hokiing company. This loan bs unsecured. The term of repsyment of term
loans is stated below:

As st March,81,2019
Particulars : Amount outstanding Terms of  Rate of
Loan tranche 2 £.58%
Loan tranche 8 6.58%
Loan tranche 4 450.00] the end of next 6.58%
Loan trenche 11300 vew® 6.58%
As at March,32,2018
Particulars - Amount outstending Termsof  Rate of
repaymant interest
B31% (5.50%
Loan tranche 2 3,000.00 w.eflanvay 1,
20181
. 190.00 Bt £.51% (6.50%
Lean trancha 3 repaymant by "..'2::\." >
450,00(the end of next] 8.51% {6358%
o
Loan tranche 4 year® u.e,f;;t;:q 1,
55.00 A.51%{6.58%
w.afianuary 1,
Loan trenche S 018
As at March 31, 2017
Particulars Amount outstanding Termsof __ Rate of
9.74% (3.51%
Loan tranche 2 3,000.00 [  Bubet py | WA Octohera,
2151
Loan tranche 3 19000 [heerdoineal Lo
Loantranche 4 0000 "V as1%
As st March 31, 2016:
Particulars Amount outstanding Termsof  Rate of
- fOp2yment_Interest
Loan tranche 2 : 3,000000  puter a.78%
145.00| repoyment by asx
. the end of next|
Losn tranche 3 yesr ¢
As st March 31, 2018:
Particulars Amount outstanding Termsof  Rate of
repayment  interest
Loan tranche 1 B267)  puret e
3,357.10| repoyment by 9.31%
the end of next
Loan tranche 2 Yo
© As per the contractus! terms, loans from refated party are payable by the and of next year. However, company takes approva! from retated party from
the due dale for defermant of these loan generally for the period of further one yesr,
Note 19 : Trade payables
Asat As st
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 18
Trade payables
~ Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smafl enterprises (Refer Note 45) 0.05 -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro anterprises and small enterprises 9.17 15.41
Total 922 15.41
Trade bles in respect of purchases, direct and other exp The average credit period on purchases/ direct expenses is
30 duys. However Cox Pays the outstanding in 15-20 days. No Interest Is charged on the trade bles due for The C: y

has a practice to ensure that all payables sre paid within the pre-sgreed credit terms.

Note 20 : Other cwrrent financlal Nabilities

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
At amortised cost
Advance/deposits from parties 5375 60,53
Eamest money deposit 31.82 ) 751
Dua to Micro and small enterprises (Refer Nota 45) 8.98 -
Other payabls to rotated party 7934 7934
Others 167,54 189.70
Total 341,83 337.08
Mote 21 : Other curvent lisbilities

As ot As at
Particulers March 31, 2019 March 31, 201
Statutory dues payable . 4.59 3.48
Others - :
Total 4.59 348
Note 22 ; Short term provisions

Asm Asmt

March 31, 2019 March 31

Provision for employee benefits 1.27 0.87

Total 1.27




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Allamountsarein ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 23 : Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
: 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Sale of cartons 5.42 1.24
Cooling charges 46.63 -
Handling income 9.82 -
Total 61.87 1.24
Note - 24 : Other income
For the year ended March For the year ended
Particulars 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Interest on bank deposits 89.30 1.97
Interest on loans to employees - 163
Interest on security deposit given 0.30 0.27
Other interest income 7.27 0.06
Excess provision written back 4.47 4,04
Other non-operating income 8.80 8.80
Total 110.13 16.77
Note - 25 : Purchase of traded goods
For the year ended March For the year ended
Particulars 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Stock-in-trade - -
Stores and spares - -
Total - -
Note - 26 : Changes in Inventories
. For the year ended March For the year ended
Particulars 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Opening stock
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 42.02 59.83
42.02 59.83
Closing stock
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 38.92 42.02
38.92 42,02
Total 3.10 17.81

. &y
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Direct Expenses
Note - 27 : Direct expenses

For the year ended
. For the year ended March
1,2018"
Particulars 31,2019 March 31, 2018
CA store maintenance - 25.13
Handling expenses (Rai) 10.46 0.30
Power and fuel 115.89 33.36
Testing expenses/ charges /consumable goods 0.11 0.12
Consultancy fee 0.75 -
Performance award - 0.95
Total . 122,21 59.86
Note - 28 : Employee benefits expense .
For the year ended March For the year ended
Particulars
31,2019 March 31, 2018
Salary, allowances and other employee benefits 15.96 63.18
Contribution to CPF and FPF 1.22 6.44
Employees welfare and medical 3.69 1.09
Gratuity 0.60 2.89
Total 2147 73.60
Note - 29 : Financial cost
Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
articu 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest on loans from related party 246.78 295.93
Total 246.78 295,93
Note - 30 : Depreciation and amortisation
For the year ended March For the year ended
Particulars 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Depreciation and amortisation 434.79 503.08
Total "434.79 503.08

6S




Note - 31 : Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended
31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Printing and stationery expense 0.73 0.08
Travelling and conveyance 0.46 152
Travelling and conveyance - Director 0.34 0.08
Rent office space/ Ral land and license fee* 18.59 19.01
Office/ CA store Up keeping expenses 891 3.09
Repairs and maintenance - -
- Plant and machinery 8.94 3.89

- Others 4.29 4.29
Security expenses 21.27 24.40
Office vehicle/ car hire charges - 0.14
Business development - 0.08
Postage, telephone and internet 0.47 1.60
Bank charges 0.01 0.01
Stamp duty charges 1.35 7.50
Legal and professional charges 7.96 12.54
Insurance premium 2.64 3.03
Advertisement 4.06 -
- Statutory audit fee 1.08 1.08
Service Charge 8.67 0.09
Service tax expense - 2.07
Swachh bharat cess - 0.07
Krishi kalyan cess - 0.07
Property tax Haryana - 1.63
Trade licence 0.76 1.09
Rates & taxes - 1.92
ROC Fee - 37.50
Loss on sale of fixed assets 83.65 -
Waived/Write Off - 0.02
Miscellaneous expenses 3.32 343
Total 177.50 130.23

* Includes land given on lease by HSIIDC Limited, Rai for 30 years from 26.03.2003, further extandable for a
period of 99 years for which no lease premium has been paid. Lease rent is @ Rs.1.50 per $q. mtr. per month
for 66,400 sq. mtr, area for first 15 years and thereafter will be fixed mutually; kept same for F.Y. 2018-19,
Includes land given on lease by H.P. Gowt. for lease money charged at 10% of current circle rates to the tune
of Rs.5,85,626/- per annum subject to revision/enhancement every five years of the existing lease amount as

per provisions of Rule, 8(i) & (ii) of H.P. Lease Rules, 2013 for 99 years w.e.f. 01.08.2014.

¥
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise Stated)

32. Income taxes

32.1 Income tax recognised In profit or loss

i Year ended Year ended
Particutars 31/03/2019 31/0372018
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year - -
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year - -
The income tax expense for the year can be recongiled to the accounting profit/(loss) as follows:

cul . Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Profit/(Loss) before tax (838.84) (1,062.50)

* = * =25,

;r;c:r)ne tax credit calculated (at 25% *104%=26% (C.Y.)/25%*103%=25.75% {218.10) (273.59)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 22.09 12.01
Income tax not recognised on losses (196.01) (261.58)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - .

The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 25% plus cess of 4% on total income tax payable by corporate entities

W

in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law for F.Y. 2018-19.

]
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Frash & Heslthy Entarprises Limitad
Notes forming part of the finandial stataments
(ANamountsare in ¥ Lakhs unlass otherwise stated)

33. Deferved tax balances
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/f(liabilities) presanted in the batance sheet:

Pasticutars

Deferred tax iabillties
Deferred tax assets

Deforred tax assets over and above defy
Net deferred tax

tax Hability not

* The Compaday has camied out the Dolerredhxmmpumianhmrdamwm\hlnduu-lmhmmnmmem 13 of the view that it is not reasonable

Al.t‘

Asmt
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
e March 33,29
{569.69)} {6372.49)
5,837.718 S,709.61
— (52809 —_— e

certzin to realise deferred tax assets in the near future, In

the absence of the inity of reali y of deferrad tax assets, the deferred tax assots has been recognised only to the extent of delerred tax liability,
2018-2019
Particulars Opening baisnce Racognised in profit or Recognised in other Recognised directly in Closing batance
Dalerred tax (Gabiikties)/acsets In rety tion to:
Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961, over . . 72.01
depreciation a5 ver books {639.85) 67.84 (572.01)
Loan to employees (0.40) - - (0-40)
Remeasucement of defined benefit plan 276 - [0.04) : 2.n
Deferred tax liablity ., 163749) 6734 (0.04) - (589.68)
Expenditure covered by section 438 of LT. Act, 1861 {15.77) 0.0 - - (15.76)
Share [ssue expenses . . - . .
Ad) for of hurn paid on b hold land 1.92 . - - 192
Discounting of security deposit given 1.09 .02 - - i
Brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation §,722.37 12814 - - 5.850.51
Oeferred vax asset 5,709.61 128,17 . - 5,837.78
Deferred tax assets oves and above deferred tax Hability not recognized {5,072.12) {196.01) 0.04 - —[5:268.00)
Net deferred tax - . - B -
2017-2018
Panticutan Opening balance  Recognised ia protitos Recognised in other Racognised directly in Closing balerice
—comorchonshafncome  eouhty
Deferved tax {Nsbiities)/nssets In relation to:
Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961, over . . 639.85
deorediation a5 oer bocks (703.32) 68.47 f )
Loan to employees (0.40) . - - (0.40)
Remeasurement of defined benafit plan {1.98} - 474 . 2.76
Deferred tax Nability (710.20) : 347 474 - (63749)
Expenditure covered by section 438 of LT. Act, 1961 7.60 (2337) - . 1s.77)
Share issue axpenses . - - . .
Adje for of pald on hold land 192 . - - 192
Discounting of secusity deposit given 108 004 - - 109
Brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 5,505.93 216.44 - - 5722.37
Doferrad tax asset 5,516.50 193.11 - - 5,%9.61
Deferved tax sasels gver and above daferred tax lisbility hot recognized — . {4,805.80) _ (26138) 478 - — {50721
Net deferred tex - - . - .
33.1Un deductible ¥ ditferences and unused tax losses
Particulars Unused tax losses will For the year anded For tha year endegd
. xpirein — Marchinee ——_March 33, 2018
Deductible temporary ditferences and unused tax lasses for which no deferred tax
assets have been Ised are attrib to the fotlowi:
-tax losses A/Y 2010-11 AfY 201718 . 138,055,149.00
-tax losses A/Y 2011-12 AN 201819 29,989,230,00 29,989,230.00
- tax losses A/Y 201213 AfY 2015-20 148,536,281.00 142,536,281.00
- tax losses A/V 2013-14 AY 2020-1 110,628,378.00 110,628,378.00
~tax losses A/Y 2014-15 AY2021-22 400,313,389.00 400,313,389.00
~ tax bosses A/Y 2015-16 Al 2022:23 131,436,910,00 131,436,910.00
-tax losses AYY 2016-27 AN 2023-24 241,010,822.00 241,000,822.00
-taxlosses AfY 2017-18 AJY 2024-25 112,123,169.00 112,123,169.00
~tax losses AfY 2013-19 AfY 2025-26 £4,048,743.00 ——
Total 1,258,086,922.00 1,312,093,328.00




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Allamounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

34. Segment information

The company is dealing in logistics of fresh fruits. Al the activities of the company are related to this business. Company has
operations in india only. Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses only on logistics of fresh fruits.

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the current year.
The Company operates in only one geography i.e. India.

Revenue from major products and services

The foliowing is are the details of revenue from its major products and services:
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

Sale of fresh fruits - -

Information about major customers

Included in revenues arising from sales of fresh fruits of Rs.Nil (2017-2018: NiL) and revenues of approximately Rs. NIL (2017-18:
Rs. NIL) which arose from sales to the Company's largest customer. No single customer contributed 10% or more to the
company's revenue for both 2018-19 and 2017-18.

35. Earning per share

As at : Asat
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Basic earning/ (loss) per share (0.53) _ (0.73)

There are no dilutive instruments issued by the company.

Basic earning per share
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows.

As at Asat
Particulars - March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit for the year attributable to owners of (1,062.50)
the Company {838.84)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic
n! esu (1,062.50)
earnings per share (838.84)
Weighted average number of equity shares for
the purposes of basic earnings per share 1,591.18 1,456.68

36. Impact of changes In accounting policies
There are no changes in the accounting policies which had impact on the amounts reported for earning per share.

w
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37. Employee benefit plang

A, Defined Contribution Plans
3} Employers Contribution to Provid, Fund
C Y pays fixed ib to Provident Fund at predetermined rates to a $eparate trust, 'CONCOR Employees CPF Trust’ which invests the fund in permitted securities. The contribution to the fund for the period Is recognized as expenss and s chargud to the

Statement of Profit & Loss. The obligation of the Company is imited to such fixed contribution, However, the trust is required to pay a minimum rate of interest on contributions to the members as Specified by Governmant.

Forthe year ended For the yeas ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Ouring the year the C. y has d the follewing in the state of profit and losy --
Employens Co to Provident Fund 0.67 4.62

B. Defined Benefit Plans and Other Long Term Benafits
a) Contribution to Gratulty Funds - Employes's Gratuity Fund.
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, which Is regulated as per the provisions of PlvmentafGthvAct, 1972, The scheme is non funded. The Hability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The company has a defined benefit leave encashment plan and sick leave plan for its employwes. Under this pian, they are entitled to encashment of eamed leaves snd medical inaves subject to certain limits and other conditions specified for the same. The llabifities
towards leave encashment have been provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.-

) Leave Travel Concession,

The Company provides LTC facilities to frs loyees, which is C in d with the policy framed in this regard. The llability for the same i recognised on the basis of actugrial valuation.
These plans typicalty expose the company to actuarial Sk such as: investment risk, interest rate tisk, longevity risk and salary risk.
The presenet value of the defined benefit plan Fabilhy ks cakculated by refernce ta the best estimate of the mortality of plan Participants both during and after their h Anli inthe itfe's y of the plan participants wil}
Longevy Risk incraase the plan's abiliy.
Salary Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan lisbdlity is caleulated by reference to the future salaries of Plan partiel, As such, an | in the satary of the plan particiapants will Increase the plan's Habiity.

The most recent actuaral valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out a3z at March 31, 2019 by Mithras Consultants, The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the refated cument service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the projected unit credit mathod,
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An actuarial valuation was carried out in res of the aforesaid defined benefit plan:

3 and other long term benefits based on the following assu ns.

Particulars AS a3t March 31,2018 As at March 31, 2018
o Loave ncashmant [ Sick e LewaTavel | eal Pt | eave Encostment|  Sickleave | Leave Travel Medical
G?ww e Concession Gratulty Fund cave Concession
Discount rate annum| 72.77% 2.71% 7.27% 7.77% 2.77% 2.85% 7.89% 7.89% 7.89% 2.89%
Rate of increase in compensation levals 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 3.50% 5.50% S5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Rate of return on assets NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
JALM (2006-| 1IALM (2008-08) I1ALM (2006-08) fIALM (2006-08}1 1ALM {2006-08) | 1ALM {2006~ | tam {2006-08) IALM (2006-08) |iALM (2006-08)
Mortality 08) Uttimate Ultimate Ukimate Uttimats Ultimate 08) Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate Uhtimate JALM (2006-08) Ultimate
Estimates of future salary i idered in 8 val take of inflati lority, and other rek factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
Changes in present vaiue of shligations
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2019 For the ended March 31, 2018
Employess
Leave Travel Employees Leave Travel
G:'::Iy Leave Encashment Sick leave Concatsi Medical G Fund Leave Encashment Sick leave o fon Medical
Present valug of obiigation as at b_oﬂn ning of the year 2.5% 2.45 1.82 0.89 D.58 33.81 51.24 6.85 2.91 4,05
Interest cost 0.20 0.13 0.14 0.05 .0S 254 3.84 0.51 0.22 0.30
Current service cost 040 0.4 0.17 0.83 .27 .35 036 0.06 0.34 0.19
- (0.44) - 0.15 {2.65 {15.74; (16.31 {0.23) {0.61) (4.14)
0.14 {0.11} {0.08} 0.99 2.59 {18.41) 36.68] {5.37) {2.17) 0.18
0.05 0.04 0.02 0.01 - 0.14) fe.13) {0.05) (0.00} -
0.09 {0.1%) 0.10) 0.98 - (1827, 36.55; {5.32), {2.27)) -
3.29 2.49 2.05 | 2.12 0.84 255 245 1.82 0.69 0.58
* Other Camprehensive icome of Rs.-0.14 Lakhs pertains to remeasurements of the defined benefit plan.
Reconciliation of present valua of defined benefit obligation and fair value of assets
Particidars At at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2018
Employees
Leave Travel . Employess Leave Travel .
G;:!::y Lsave Encashment Sick leave o 1on Modu:al_ Gratulty Fund Leave Encashment Sick leave Concession Medical
Present value of obligation as at the year and 3.29 249 2.05 2,11 0.84 2.55 245 1.82 0.69 0.58
Falr value of plan assets as at the year end . . - - - - - - - .
Surpius/ !Dlﬁciﬂ 3.29 249 2.05 211 0.84 2.55 245 182 0.69 0.58
Junfunded net assat/ (hability) recognised in balance sheet 3.29 249 2.05 211 0.84 253 245 1.82 0.69 058
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Classifled a3 Long Term . 3.19 242 178 15 056 247 238 1.65 033 0.39

lassHT Jerm 0.10 0.07 0.27 0.55 0.28 0.08 0.07 0.17 0.36 0.18
Jotai 3.2 249 208 211 0.84 2.58 245 1.82 0.59 0.58
Ex nised in the statement of t & loss

Particulars Fos the ended March 31,2019 For the year ended March 31, 2018
. Employees Employees
Leave Encashment . . Lesve Trave! P Leave Encashment]| . . Leave Travel eaf 08
G;:::l:v ‘. Sick loave Concession ** Medical Gmul:y Fund P Sick lsave Concession ** Medical
Current service cost 0.40 040 0.17 0.53 0.27 0.35 036 0.06 0.34 0.19
Interest cost 0.20 0.19 0.14 0.05 0.05 254 3.84 0.51 0.22 0.30
Net actuarial {gain)/ loss recognised during the year
Effect of change in financial assumptions {gains)f losses - 0.04 0.02 0.01 - - {0.13). {0.05) (0.00) -
Effect of experience adjustments (gains)/ lasses - {0.15) {0.10) 0.98 2.58 - {36.55}/ {5.32) (2.17) 0.18
Total expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 0.60 0.48 0.23 1.57 2.91 2.89 A8 {4.80) {1.61} 0.62
® Included in "Gratulty” In note no. 28 - Employes benefit expenses
** included in “Salary, Al & Other Employee Benefits® in nota no. 28 - Employes benefit expenses
3 d bution on of yand dent Fund for the year ending March 31, 2019 can not be ascertained at this stage.
Significant ! P for the deter of the defined obligation are di rate and salary i The sensltivity analyses below have been d d based on Y possible changes of the rring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all othar assumptions constant.
Particulars AS at March 31, 2019 As @t March 31, 2018
Employees Employees
A Leave Travel Nttt - . Leave Travel
Gan.y Leave Encashment Shck leave Concession * ty Fund | Leave Sick leava Concession * Medical

Discount rate is 100 basis points higher (0.40) {0.30) {0.11) - - {0.32) {0.30) (0.06) - -
Discount rate is 100 basis points lowar 0.47 038 0.13 - - 038 036 0.07 - -
E satary growth by 1% 048 033 0.13 223 084 038 036 0.14 0.70 058
E d salary growth d by 1% {041} {0.30) {0.12} {2.00) {0.84) {033) {0.31) (0.13) {0.68) {058}
The sensitivity snalysls prasented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation &5 it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one ancther as some of the may be d

Furth In the above

benefit obligation fabity recognisad In tha balsnce sheat.

There was no change in the methods and assumptiens used in praparing the sansitivity analysis from prior years.

ivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit abligation has been calcul using the

unit credit method at the end of the reporting periad, which Is the sama as that applied In calculating the defined



Fresh & HeaRhy Enterprises Limited -
Notes forming part of the financial )
(All amounts are In T lakhs uniess ctherwise stated)

38. Financlal Instruments

(1) Capital management
The company reviews the capital structure as and when need arises. As part of this review, the cost of capital and the risks assoclated with each class of
capital are considered, Based on this, the Company determines tha amount of capital required for annual and lang-term oparating plans. The funding
requirements are met through equity and short term b g3. Tha C the capital structure on the basts of Net debt to equity ratio and
maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Compary. The company Isn't subject to any i d capital

The Company is relying on the support of its holding company for meeting the long-tarm and short-term goals oblk Further, the C y has
already evaluated various business prospects based on which Management is of the view that there ks no doubt about the viability of the Company and
the Company will be in a good condition in the coming years without doub fts abllity to as » going

For tha purpose of capital management, capital includes Issued oquity capital, securitias premium and all other rezarves attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Net debt long-term and short-term borrowings including interest accruad as reduced by cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratio as at the end of tha reporting period was a1 follows:

As ot Aset
. Morch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Debt 5,547.95 5,263.66
Cash and bank balances {1,350.26) {13.39)
Netdebt 4,197.69 5,250.27
Equity {1304.38) {1,810.40)
Net debt to equity ratio -322% -290%
{i) Categories of financial instruments
Asat Aswt
Particulars Muorch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Financlal assets carried of amortlzed cost®
Cash and bank balances 1350.26 1339
Trade receivables 160.01 163.490
Loans . 0.07
Other Financial assets 54,08 51.70
Financial labikties cerried at emortized cost®
Trade payables 5.22 1541
Borrowings 5547.95 5,263.66
Other financial liabilities 34183 33708

* There are no financlal assets or financial fiabiiitles carried st falr value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or
loss{FVTPL) during FY 17-18 and 18-19, .

{IN) Financial risk management objactives

The financial risks relating to the of the C are by anah p by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
markat risk (including currency rhsk, Interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Further, there has been no change 1o the Company's
exposure to market risks or tha manner in which these risks are being and H Y's exp to the market risk does not
prises in respect of the following:

8) The company is not subject to di d in foreign 3

b) The C has availed b 'gs 21 8 fixed rate of interest from its holding company;

<) The company does not hold any investments,

B¢




(iv) Credit dsk mmagement
To tackle the cradit default, ¢ y has now adoptad a policy of ying rial/ servicas against advance payment or 3gainst Bank guarantee. The
Company has filed the lagal cases in respect of some of the custamers and expects a favourable outcoms [n all of the legal cases.

[« ¥ has bani bal hald with a reputed and creditworthy banking institution rasulting to limited credit risk from the counterparties.

{vNLiquidity risk management

The Company manages Nquidity risk by maintal) ng adeq es and y monitaring fo and actual cash flows and by matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilitles.

The tabis below des detalls regardi g the contra ies of fl Wabilities including esti d interest a8 at March 31, 2019;

Particulary Carrying  Ouein Duein Due in Duein Due after Total contracted|
@mount  1styear 2ndyear 3rd year 3rdto 5th Sth your cesh flows|

—_—a
it

Borrowings and intergst there 554795 5,770.20 . . - - 5,770.20

Trade payables 222 9.22 - - - - 9.22

Other financial liabilities 34183 34183 - - - - 3“&]

The table below Ides details reg; g the maturities of financial Kabifitias including est! d intecest asat March 31, 2018;

Particulars Carrylng  Duein Ouein Duein Dueln Oue after Total contracted|
amount  Istyesr  2nd year 3rd year 3rd to Sth Sth year cash flows

—XORL

Borrowings snd interest there 5,263.66 548248 . . - . 5,482.48

Trade payables 1541 15.01 - - . - 1541

Other financlal liabilities 332.08 337.08 - - - - 337.08

The table balow details g the i of fl Kabilities including intarast 8s at March 31, 2017;

Particulars Carying  Dweln Duein Du¢ In Duein Due after Total contracted
a@mount  istyear  2nd year 3rd year 3rd to 5th 5thyesr cash flows

—R

Borrowings and intarest there 492281 522832 . . - - 5,22832

Trade payables 15.56 1556 - - . - 15.56

Other financlal liabilities 195.34 195.34 - - « - 195.34

The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be sarned on those
assets.

The table below provides details ragarding the ! of i 1 35sets including estimated interest receipts as at 31 March 2019:
|Pacticulars Carrying . wpto 1 1-2 year 2-3yesr 35 year Morethan S Total Contracted
amount year year Cash flows;
Trade recalvables 160.01 160.01 - - - - 160.01
Loans -
Current assets - - . - - - -
Non-<current assats - - - . - - -
Other financial assets -
Current assets 828 8.28 - - - . 8.28
Non-current assets 45.80 - .- - > 54.78 54.78
The table below ides detalls ling the of i Il assets incfuding estt Intarest ipts as at 31 March 2018:
Particulars Carvying upto 1 1-2 year 2-3yenr 3-5year More than § Total Contracted
amount year yesr Cash flows
Trade receivables 163.40 163.40 . - - - 163.40
Loans -
Current assets 0.07 0.0? - . - - 0.07
Non-current assets - - - - - - -
Other financial aasets -
Current assots 6.20 620 - . - - 6.20
Non-.current assets 45.50 - - - - 54.78 54.78
The table below provides details g g the | maturities of fi | assets including esth Interest Ipts as at 31 March 2017:
Particulsrs Camying  uptol 1-2year 23 year - 35 year Maore than 5
t ear i year
Trade receivables 166.49 166.49 . . - -
Loans
Current assets 525 587 - - . -
Non-current assets 9.60 - 3.88 3485 3.27 -
Other financial assets
Current assets 640 640 - - . .
Non-current assets 43.24 - -




{vl} Financing fecliities

Particulars Asat Asat
Moarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Unsecurad loan facllities from related party

amount used 3,753.00 3,695.00

amount unused 42.00 105.00

Toted 3,200.00 3,800.00

fvil) Fair value messurements

No financial #3sets and financial Tabilities of the campany are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period,

(vil) Fair value of finencial assets and financiat Hablities that are not messured at faie value (but fair value disclosures are required;

As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Falrvalue ~ Carrying Corrying
Particulars hierarch amount Fairvalye amount Fair value
Financial assets —hv“___—_ﬁ*‘
Trade receivables* Level 2 160.01 160.01 163.40 163.40
Loans
Current assets® Level 2 - - 0907 0.0?7
Non-current assats Level 2 - . -
Other financist assets
Current assets* Level 2 8.28 828 6.20 6.20
Non-current assets Level 2 45.80 45.80 45.50 4550
Financial Liabfiities
Current Lisbllitfes®
Borrowlings .
inchsding interest Level 2 554795 5,547.95 5,263.86 5,263.56
acerued ’ .
Trade payables Level 2 9.22 8.22 1542 1541 . 1
Other financial Babiiities Level 2 341.83 341.83 337.08 337.08
The fair values of the fi assets and financia! labliitfes included in the level 2 above have been d ined in Ji with g y
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputa being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties,

* there s no significant change in the fair value of these current financlal assets and current financial llabilities, therafore fair value is ecqjual to Its carrying
valve,

/

LAY




14
\

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Notes forming part of the financlal statements

(Al amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
39. Operating lease arrangements

a) Asalessee

Leasing arrangements

Payments recognised as an expense

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
Particulars Office Accomodation . Total Office Accomodation Total
Premises provided to staff Premises provided to staff
Minimum lease payments 1859 - 1859 195,01 - 19,01
W




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited :
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Al amounts are in T kakhs unless otherwise stated)

40. Statement of Transactions with related parties

" Holding Company
Container Corporation of India Limited

Fellow su
CONCOR Alr Limited

Part Time Directors
Sh. V Kalyana Rama, Chairman
Sh. Rahul Mithal, Director
Sh. Sanjay Swarup, Director
Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyant, Director (w.e.t. 23.01.2018)

Independent Directors
Sh, Sanjeev S, Shah (ceased to be Independent Director w.e.f. 01.04.2018)

Key Management Personnel
Sh. Mohan tal Arora, CEQ
Sh. Umesh K. Behl, CFO
Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary

The following table summarkzes felated-party transactlons and balances with the holding company for the year ended and as on

feporting date;

Transactions during the year

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured loan taken 58.00 175.00
Unsecured loan refunded - 70.00
Unsecured loan converted into equity - -
Interest on loan 246.78 295.92
Interest Paid . 30.48
TDS deducted on interest on loan 24.68 29.59
Lease rental of plastic bins - -
Lease rental of plastic bins paid - .
TDS deducted on lease rental - -
Sale of damaged CONCOR Bins . .
Payment of CONCOR Bins (recovered from customers) - -
Administrative expenses {Advertisement) 0.60 -
Travelling expenses - 0.66
Boarding & Lodging - 0.08
Reglona! provident fund commissioner - 0.50
Reimbursement (salary, perks & Allowances) 0.28 71.20
TDS on Reimbursement of salary by CONCOR - 6.62
Loans, advances & interest recovered {Employees) - 13.31
Balances at the year end
Particulars For the year ended For the year e:ded
Other payables 28.42 28.42
Other payables for lease rent of plastic bins 50.52 50.92
Loans payables 3,753.00 3,695.00
Interest accrued on loans 1,790.76 1,568.66
Administrative expenses (Advertisement) 0.60 -

There are no transacatlons and balances outstanding with KMPs.

W




40.1 Loans from refated parties

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 - Morch 31,2018

Unsecured .

Loans from Container Corporation of Indla Limited 3,753.00 3,695.00

{nterest accrued on loans 1,7950.76 1,568.66

The Company has taken working capital loan from Its holding company Container Corporation of India {Concor) at the following terms: .

Particulars Amount Rate of Interest Repayable
As at March 31, 2019
Loan tranche 2 3,000.00 6.58%
Bullet repayment by the end
Loan tranche 3 150.00 6.58% of next year*
450.00
Loan tranche 4 6.58%
Loan tranche 5 113.00 6.58%
As at March 31, 2018
8.51% (6.58% w.e.f
Loan tranche 2 3,000.00 Jan 1, 2018)
Bullet repayment by the end
190.00 |8.51% (6.58% w.e.f of nextye :Vr.
Loan tranche 3 Jan 1, 2018)
450.00 18.51% (6.58% w.e.f
Loan tranche 4 Jan 1, 2018)
Out of Rs.1.25 Cr. an amount
Loan tranche 5 125.00 fa':ll"z(gf:,“ el fR5.0.70 Lakhs has been
. ‘ refunded
As at March 31, 2017
9.74% (8.51% w.e.f
Loan tranche 2 3,000.00 October 1, 2015) Bullet repayment by the end
Loantranche 3 190.00 {8.51% of next year*
Loan tranche 4 400.00 |8.51%
As at March 31, 2016
Loan tranche 2 3,000.00 [9.74% I Bullet repayment by the end
Loan tranche 3 145.00 |8.51% of next year*
As at March 31, 2015
Loan tranche 1 932,67 |9.74% , Bullet repayment by the end
Loan tranche 2 3,352.10 |]9.31% of next year*®

* As per the contractual terms, loans from related party are payable by the end of next year, However, company takes approval from related party from the due date
for deferment of these loan generally for the period of further one year,

402 Sitting fees paid to independent directors for the year is Rs.3.20 lakhs (previous year Rs.4.40 Lakhs)

40,3 Compensation of key management personne! {Ms. Suman Lata) *;

Particulars For the y:ar ended For the year ended
Short-term benefits

Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the income tax Act, 1961 - 5.46

Value of perquisites under section 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 .- 0.00
Post-employment benefits . -
Other long-term benefits - -
Share-based payments - -
Termination benefits - .

. 5.46

* Compensation to Ms, Suman Lata, key management personnel paid by the holding company.,
* Compensation to other key management personnel {i.e. CEQ & CFQ) are pald by the holding company

40.4 Terms and conditions
All the transactions were made on normal commerclal terms and conditions and at market rates, All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash. No

guarantees have been given or received. No expense has been recognised in the current or prior years for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by
related party.




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements
{Allamounts are In T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

41 Contingent Dabilities and contingent assets

As ot As ot
e March 31, 2019 e March 31, 2018
2. Bank Guarantees not provided for 2.00 2.00

b. Carrots were stored by M/s GAPL in FHEL's facility. M/s GAPL disputed the rental and re
and M/s GAPL approachad Arbitrator for claim of Rs.4,58,84,497/-
High Court and filed appeal against the Arbitrator award. The case is pending in High Court, Dalhi.

€. A Claim of Rs.53,46,837/- against FHEL has been filed by the Growers of Shimla area which is under arbltratton proceeding. A counter claim of Rs.1,68,98,043/-

d. M/s Pulkit Industries have invoked arbitration clause for 2 tenders. The claim amount is Rs. 18.81 lakhs
by FHEL and the matter has been pending with Patiala House Court.

€. M/sJ. Papyrus Packaging Pvt. Ltd. has filed an execution petition as per the arbitration award of Rs.8,78,007/-.

f) Marish Packers have file a recovery suit against FHEL in Sonipat Courts for Rs.1,37,043/- and lagal proceedings are going on.
Nocontingent assats and contingent gains are probable to the company.

42. Detalls of expenditure and earnings in foreign currency:

on quality lssues. Arbitrator awarded Rs.87,16,956/- in favour of FHEL and Rs.80,44,961/-

quested for arbitration. FHEL approached arbitrater to recover rental charge and handling charge of Rs.87,16,956/-

in favour of M/s GAPL. Both approached Hon’ble

has also been filed by the Company.

plus interest. The arbitration has awarded in favour of M/s Pulkit Industries which has been challenged

FHEL has challenged the award and also the execution petition at Sonipat Court.

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31 .
Expenditure in foreign exchange - -
Expenditure In foreign exchange - -
43, Additional Infor quived a3 per schedule I of companies Act 2013 regarding purchase, sale and stock of main HRems:
Item Opening [Purchased Sold C d* [Closing
Qe (Kgs.) C/Y - - - - -
. s.) /Y - - - - B
Frults Amount {in Rs.) C/Y ~ - - - -
Amount (in Rs.) P/Y - - - - -
Qty {No.) C/Y 627,702 - 31,040 - 596,662
No.) PfY 640,305 - 12,603 ~ 627,702
i
Packing Material Amount fin Rs.) C/¥ 2,594,320 308,679 - 3,285,641
JAmount (in Rs.} P/Y 4,374,404 123,854 1,656,230 2,594,320
e C ption includes recycled and used for packing and loss due to valuation.
44, Auditors Remuneration '
" Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
—March 31,2019 Mari 01
Statutory audit 108 1.08
Tax audit - -
Total 1.08 1.08
Note : The above amount are exclusive of service tax/GST
45, The Particulars of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [“MSMED Act”)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act at the year end. 9.03 -
interest d and dus to llers under MSMED Act on the above

amount, unpaid at the year end.

Payment made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond the appointed
date during the yesr.
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Interest paid to suppliers under section 16 of MSMED Act during the year. - -

I due and ble to llers under MSMED Act for payments

already made.

Interest accrued and not paid to suppliers under MSMED Act Up to the R .

yearend, — ——
9.03 -

Nete: The above Inf: has been disclosed in respect of parties which have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company,

46. Pending issuance of Notification u/s 441A of Companies Act, 1956 and as no provisions on the matter are stated in the companies act, 2013, no provision has been made towards Cess on turnover.

47. The impact of pay revision in respect of security ete. will be d for on receipt of claims.

48. lnsurance Claims of Rs. 5.54 lakhs for transit accident of apple loaded trucks is pending with National insurance Company.

49, In the opinion of the management, during the year there are no Indications that impairment of 2ny esset has taken place. Accordingly, no provision for impairment of assets is required as per indian
Accounting Standard 36,

50, During the year, provision for current tax is not made as the Company has brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation amounting to 125,81 crore upto A/Y 2018-19 (as at March 31, 2018:
Rs.131.21 crore upto AfY 2017-18) in accordance with the provisions of the incone Tax Act, 1961.

51, During the year the Company had no employee drawing remuneration equal to or more than the limks prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

52. An amount of Rs.6.16 fakhs is appearing in Income Tax/TDS portal against the company TAN No. as Payable on account of short deduction, However, in the opinion of the management, no amount is
payable for F.Y. 2007-08 of Rs.2.60 Lakhs and for balance provision has been made in F.Y, 2017-18,

53. A business plan has been epproved for re-engineering of the facility at Rai, Sonepat in two phases i.e. Phase | for modification of existing facility at a cost of Rs.13.45 Crore to cater the specific requirements
of the clients based on detailed market analysis and projected business volumes and Phase if with an investment of Rs,30.86 Crore for building 2000MT of Deep Freeze facilities and 3000sq. mirs of Ancilliary

High Rise storage as a feadar facility for existing faciticy,
CONCOR has made equity Infusion of Rs.13.45 Crore towards implementation of Phase | by subscripts Rights issue of 1,34,50,000 equity shlin of Rs.10/- each.
L]

‘\M'(\‘ W\’\w% —— Rahu! Mithal

PO —— V. Kalyana Rama -a// i
CA Amit Maheshwari ) Chairman S ‘Dﬁ'}./ CEQ
Partner ~ \ .
M.No. 538665 [nA C‘—‘f/,_ Q;/
Date:24,04.2019 Suman Lata esh K. Behl

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary ef Finance Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
‘THE MEMBERS OF

M/s FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
.. Report on the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M, FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (“the Company™) which comprises thc Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity) and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 2
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 “Act” in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and the other accounting
principles generally sccepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2019, and profit/loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics

Issued by the Institute of Chartercd Accountants of India together with the cthical requircments
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thercunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respongibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belicve that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are thosc matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. Those matters were addressed in the
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context of our audit of the financial statements as 8 whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a scparaic opinion on these matters.

Based on the circumstances and facts of the company and the audit, we have determined that
there are no key matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibility of Management and those charge with governanee for
the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”™) specified under section
133 of the Act, ’

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriate implementation
and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intermal fGmancial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial.statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going cancem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease opersations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantec that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considercd
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

¥
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obtain sudit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinioa.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
onc resulting from crror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intcational omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design sudit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)Xi) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit cvidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our suditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complicd with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. :

From the matter we communicated with those charged with govemnance, we determine those
matters that were significance in the audit of standalonc financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe those matters in our audit’s report unless law .
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our audit report
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because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i) As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure B, & statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

i) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books ;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of Cash Flow and the
statement of change in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the company has accumulated fosses and its net worth has been
substantialty/fully eroded. The Company has incurred a net Loss / net Cash loss during the
current year and previous year(s) and, the Company current liabilities exceeded its current
assets as at the balance sheet date.

However, the company has & re-engineering plan which is expected 10 result reasonable
profits in future years.

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the dircctors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{g) With respect to-the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A",

- (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audltor s Repor( in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opmxon and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us: o

2h




. . 4117, 1% Floor, '
Anil Ashiok I Associates T
Chartered Accountants Chone : 011-23962062, 23923496
Fax :011-23911438

E-mail ; roc.anilashok@gmail.com

i.  The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements- Refer Note 8§ to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements,

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contrasts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

{ii, There was no amount required to be transferred to, the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company. '

iii) As required by section 143(5) of the act, we give in the “Annexure C”, 2 statement on the
matters specified in the Directions issued by The Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, and in our opinion, no action is required to be taken thercon and there is no impact
on accounts and the financial statements of the company.

7. Emphasis of Matters
We draw atteation to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements.

Note 8 to the financial statement in respect of sundry debtors there is uncertainty related to
the outcome of the lawsuit filed against various sundry debtors.

Our opinion is not modified in res.pect of these matters.

For Anil Ashok & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN:00S17TN

Aot Pkasboones .

(CA Amit Mﬁulw.‘l)
_Place: New Delhi .
‘Date:24™ April 2019 M. No 538665

§<
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Annexure “A” to the Auditor’s Report of Fresh and Heslthy Enterprises Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Fresh and Healthy
Enterprises Limited (“thc Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAP). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemnal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policics, the safeguarding of its asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely prepamuon of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
-internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding,
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, asscssing the risk that a matcrial weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalonc Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient.and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Mcaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policics
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable ascurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. .
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to emor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Achok & Associates

Chartered Accountnnts
FRN:005177N

Q\JMM‘QM?-
(CA Amit Mxheshwari)
Place: New Delhi Patmer .

Date:24™ April 2019 M. Ne. : 538665
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The Annexure-B referred to in paragraph 6(i) of Our Report of even date to the members of FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED on the Standsione Ind AS flnancial statements of the company
for the year ended 31 March, 2019.

We report that:

1

S

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which all the fixed assets are verified annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed upon such verification during the year.

(c) The title deeds of immovable praperties, which are held in the name of company as at the
balance sheet date, are held in the name of company.

(a) As explained to us, Inventory has been physically verified by the management as at 31
March 2019.

(®) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its busincss.

(¢) In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is
generally maintaining proper records of its inventories. No material discrepancy was noticed
on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to book records.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsccured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

The company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or
made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of Compahies Act ,2013,

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined in section 73 and 76
of the Companies Act 2013

The company is not required to maintain cost records under subsection (1) of Section 148 of
the Act.

(8) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Income tax, Goods & Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
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.- Insurance, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and cxplanations given to us, there are no dues of Income
tax or Sales Tax or Goods & Service tax or duties of excise or value added tax or cess and
other material statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on account of
any disputes.

(c) There was no amount which was due for transfer to Investor education and protection
fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and
rules made there under.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to the financial institutions, banks
and Government and dues to debenture holders.

9. The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument ) and Term loans during the year hence clause 9of CARO 2016 is
not applicable.

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Compeny
by its officer or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11. No Managerial remuneration has been paid during the year in contravention to the provision
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company, Consequently , requirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable.

13. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and cxpianations
given tous, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting Standards.

" 14. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and cxplanations
given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
share or fully or partly convertible debenturcs during the year under review, consequently,
requirements of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable.
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15. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given tous, the Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with him.

16. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 451A of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Anil Ashok & Associates

Chartered Accouniants
FRN:00517TN

Busi bedemdont="
/’
(CA Amit ‘Mabeokwari)

Place: New Delhi
Date:24™ April 2019 M. No. : 538665
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Anpexure “C™ to the Auditor’s Report of Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited
Report as per Sub direction ws 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(In Pursuance of the direction from the year 2018-19 onwards)

S.No. | Directions Remarics

1 Whether the company has system in place to | The company has system in place t©
process all the accounting transactions through IT | process accouating transactions IT
system? If Yes, the implications of processing of | system. The operational entries of the
accounting transactions outside [T system on the | company like revenue, customer ledger
integrity of the accounts along with the financial | accounts etc., have been recorded in Tally
implications, if any may be stated. ERP9. The paymemts and company |

accounts are maintained in Tally ERP.9.
The income generated through Commercial
software is transferred to sccounting |
software through separate entries af
monthly intcrvals, However, the company
has adequate internal control and sudit
systems to verify coectness of the entrics
collated and posted Tally ERP.9.

2 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing | Based on the information and explanation
loan or cases of waiver/write  off furnished 10 us by the Management, there
debte/loanw/interest ctc. made by a lender to the | were no such restructuring of loans or
company due to company’s inability to repay the | waivers/write off of debts/loans/interest €ic
loan? If yes the financial impact may be stated. made by the company during the financial

year 2018-19. -

3 Whether fund teceived /receivable for specific | Based on the information and explanation
schemes from Central/State agencics were properly furnished to us by the Management, there
accounted for/utilized as per its reum and | were no such funds received/receivable
conditions? List the case of deviation. towards any specific schemes from }

Central/State Agencies during the financiat |
year 2018-19.
For Anil Ashok & Associates
FRN:005177TN
(CA Amit Msheshwmri)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date:24® April 2019 M. No. : 538665
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REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

THE MEMBERS OF

M/s FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

1.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M/s. FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity) and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. '

_This report, revised consequent upon observation of Comptroller of Auditor General of India

during the course of audit u/s 139(5) of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) for the period from
01* April, 2018 to 31% March, 2019, supersedes our earlier report dated 24™ April,2019 u/s 143 of
Companies Act,2013. :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 “Act” in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and the other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2019, and profit/loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are |
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We.believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

a? | :
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. Those matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Based on the circumstances and facts of the company and the audit, we have determined that

there are no key matters to communicate in our report.

Responsibility of Management and those charge with governance for
the Standalone Financial Statements !

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the-accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section
133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation
and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

“prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible’ for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ‘
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process :

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemerits as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

-guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. =S
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our in ﬂnde&ce\,and
SS =)
O

where applicable, related safeguards. N,
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From the matter we communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were significance in the audit of standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe those matters in our audit’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our audit report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

| 6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

ii) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

~(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books ;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of Cash Flow and the
statement of change in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account; '

(d) In our opinion, the company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been
substantially/fully eroded. The Company has incurred a net Loss / net Cash loss during the
current year and previous year(s) and, the Company current liabilities exceeded its current
assets as at the balance sheet date. :

However, the company has a re-engineering plan which is expected to result reasonable
profits in future years.

(¢) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequ?cy of the' internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our se 'ate-egport in
“Annexure A”. ‘ /Pf? 5 AZS N
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements- Refer Note 8 to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii.  There was no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iii) As required by section 143(5) of the act, we give in the “Annexure C”, a statement on
the matters specified in the Directions issued by The Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, and in our opinion, no action is required to be taken thereon and there is no impact
on accounts and the financial statements of the company. -

7. Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the findncial statements.

Note 8 to the financial statement in respect of sundry debtors there is uncertainty related to
the outcome of the lawsuit filed against various sundry debtors.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

. (CA Amit‘Maheshwari)
Place: New Delhi ‘ Partner

Date:12"™ July 2019 | M. No. : 538665
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Annexure “A” to the Auditor’s Report of Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fresh and Healthy
Enterprises Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. |

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opihion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section-
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. | |

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. -
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. '

Opinion -

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial report‘ing
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportmg
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Anil Ashok & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Date:12% July 2019 M. No. : 538665
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The Annexure-B referred to in paragraph 6(i) of Our Report of even date to the members of FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED on the Standalone Ind AS'{ financial statements of the
company for the year ended 31* March, 2019,

We report that:

1. A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
‘quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. ' '

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which all the fixed assets are verified annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed upon such verification during the year.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, which are held in the name of company as at the
balance sheet date, are held in the name of company.

2. (a) As explained to us, inventory has been physically verified by the management as at 31
March 2019.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
'reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

(¢) In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is
generally maintaining proper records of its inventories. No material discrepancy was noticed
on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to book records.

3. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. :

4. The company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or
made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of Companies Act ,2013.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined in section 73 and 76
of the Companies Act 2013 '

6. The company is not required to maintain cost records under subsection (1) of Section 148 of
the Act.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Income tax, Goods & Service tax, Provident Fund, Employe
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- Insurance, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable. ’

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income
tax or Sales Tax or Goods & Service tax or duties of excise or value added tax or cess and
other material statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on account of
any disputes.

(c) There was no amount which was due for transfer to Investor education and protection
fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companiés Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and
rules made there under. ‘ '

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to the financial institutions, banks
and Government and dues to debenture holders. '

9. The Company has not raised mohey by way of initial public offer or further public offer -

 (including debt instrument ) and Term loans during the year hence clause 9 of CARO 2016 is
not applicable.

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company
by its officer or employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

11. No Managerial remuneration has been paid during the year in contravention to the provision
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. .

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company, Consequently , requirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable. o '

13. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given tous, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting Standards.

14. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
- given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
share or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review, consequently,
requirements of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applic
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15. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanatlons
given tous, the Company has not entered into any non cash ttansactions with d1rectors or
persons connected with him.

16. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanatlons
given to us, the Company is not required to be registered undet Section 45IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

(CA Amlt\MaTﬁﬂlWan)

Place: New Delhi » Partaér
Date: 12" July 2019 M. No. : 538665
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Annexure “C” to the Auditor’s Report of Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited
Report as pér Sub direction u/s 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(In Pursuance of the direction from the year 2018-19 onwards)

S.No.

Directions

Remarks

1

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through IT
system? If Yes, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial
implications, if any may be stated.

The company has system in place to
process accounting transactions through IT
system. The operational entries of the
company like revenue, customer ledger
accounts etc., have been recorded in Tally
ERP9. The payments and company
accounts are maintained in Tally ERP.9.
The income generated through Commercial
software is transferred to accounting
software through separate entries at
monthly intervals. However, the company
has adequate internal control and audit
systems to verify correctness of the entries
collated and posted Tally ERP.9.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write  off

' debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the

company due to company’s inability to repay the
loan? If yes the financial impact may be stated.

Yes, Based on the information and
explanation furnished to us - by the
Management, there were restructuring |.
/deferment of repayment of principal
amount of loan of Rs.3753.00 Lacs &
interest of Rs.1790.76 Lacs respectively.

Whether fund received /receivable for specific
schemes from Central/State agencies were properly
accounted for/utilized as per its return and
conditions? List the case of deviation.

Based on the information and explanation
furnished to us by the Management, there
were no such funds received/ receivable
towards any specific schemes from

| Central/State Agencies during the financial

year 2018-19,

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" July 2019

For Anil Ashok & Associates
Chartered Acco

“Partier
M. No. : 538665
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FORM NO. MGT-11 : Proxy Form o )
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014)
CIN : U51909DL2006GO1145734
Name of the Company: Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of
: CONCOR)
Registered Office : CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura
Road, New Delhi — 110076.
Name of the member(s):
Registered address:
Email Id: r
Folio No./ Client Id: '
DPID:
I/ we, being the member(s) of ... ....... Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name:
Address:
Email Id:
Signature....................or failing him/her
2. Name: .
Address:
Email Id:
Signature... ... ..............or failing him/her
3. Name:
Address:
Email Id: )
Signature....................or failing him/her
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14" Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on the 27" day of August, 2015
at 11 AM at Conference Hall, CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura Road, New Delhi — 110076 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below :
S. No. Resolution(s) Option*
(please mention no. of
shares)
For Against
1 Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended as on 31, March, 2019 and report of .
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon ( Ordinary resolution)
2 Re-appointment of Shri V Kalyana Rama as Chairman/ Director ( Ordinary resolution)
3 To take note of the appointment of M/s. Anil Ashok & Associates, Statutory Auditors, New
Delhi and authorization for their remuneration (Ordinary resolution)
Signed this....dayof..................2019

Affix Revenue

Signature of shareholder Stamp

-
'|

Signature of Proxy holder(s) .
Notes: I.This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.
2. For the details of Resolutions and Notes, please refer to the Notice of 14" Annual General Meeting.

*3. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the column blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem
appropriate.

4. Please complete all details including details of member(s) before submission.




